# Best Available Copy



71-1472

Occasional Papers on Soviet Input-Output Analysis

APPROVED FOR PUBLIC PELLAS

Chapel Pill-Durbam Duke University Center for International 2101 Campus Drive Durham, North Carolina 217066 Labor and Capital in the Soviet Union by Republics

Albina Tretyakova

Translated from Russian by James W. Gillula

Vladimir G. Treml, Editor

APPROVED FOR PUBLIC RELEASE DISTRIBUTION UNLIMITED

This research was supported by the Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency under ARPA No. 3041, Contract No: MDA 903-75-C0298

I

Π

Π



17 B. 1

August, 1977 Durham, North Carolina This paper is the twentieth in the Series of Duke University. University of North Carolina Occasional Papers on Input-Output analysis in the USSP produced by participants in the research project on Soviet input-output analysis established at the two <u>universities under</u> a four-year grant provided by the Ford Foundation. The continuing work of the project was made possible by a grant from the Advanced Research Projects Agency.

The views and conclusions contained in this document are those of the author and should not be interpreted as necessarily representing the official policies either expressed or implied, of the Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency or the United States Covernment.

Any criticism and comments are welcome and should be addressed to the author of the paper or to the undersigned.

Vladimir G. Trenl Editor of the Series Department of Economics Duke University Durham North CArolina 27706

Access	ion For				
DTIC I Unanno	AB unced				
51 By					
A contract of the second se					
Dist A					
	NTIS DTIC J Unanno Justif By Distr Avai	Distribution Availabilit Avail			

#### DUKE UNIVERSITY--UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA OCCASIONAL PAPERS ON SOVIET INPUT-OUTPUT ANALYSIS

Vladimir G. Treml, Editor of the Series Department of Economics. Duke University Durham, North Carolina 27706

- 1. Vladimir G. Treml. "Input-Output Analysis in the USSR, An Annotated Bibliography.' February 1973, 129 pp.
  - OUT OF PRINT. An updated and expanded edition published by Praeger Publishers, Inc., New York in February 1975, under the title "Input-Output Analysis and the Soviet Economy. An Annotated Bibliography." 934 entries, 180 pp.
- 2. James W. Gillula, 'The Structure of the 1966 Input-Output Table of the Soviet Union in Basic Matrix Forms.' May 1973, 50 pp.
  - OUT OF PRINT. A revised and updated version published in Volume VI of <u>Jahrbuch der Wirtschaft Osteuropas</u>, Munich, Federal Republic of Germany, Winter 1976, pp. 21-56.
- 3. Steven Rosefielde, "Empirical Aspects of Soviet Foreign Trade and Heckscher-Ohlin Theory." September 1973, 53 pp.
  - OUT OF PRINT. A revised version published under the title "Factor Proportions and Economic Pationality in Soviet International Trade," <u>The American Economic Review</u>, Vol. LXIV, No. 4 1974, pp. 670-681.
- 4. Daniel A. Graham, "A Geometric Exposition of Input-Output Analysis." December 1973, 10 pp.
  - OUT OF PRINT. Published in <u>The American Economic Review</u>, Vol. LXV No. 1, March 1975, pp. 115-126.
- \*\*5. James W. Gillula, Industrial Interdependence and Production Planning in the Soviet Union." February 1974, 66 pp.
  - 6. Steven Rosefielde, 'The Complete Producers' Price Soviet Input-Output Table for 1966." June 1974, 41 pp., plus Supplement, \*55 pp.
    - OUT OF PRINT. An expanded and revised edition published as 'The Transformation of the 1966 Soviet Input-Output Table from Producers to Adjusted Factor Cost Values.' General Electric Co., Tempo, Washington, D.C. August 1975, 258 pp.

State State of the State

ív \*\*7. Arthur L. Moses, "Selected Topics on Transportation and Input-Output in the Soviet Union." April 1974, 94 pp. 8. Gene D. Guill, "Intertemporal Comparison of the Structure of the Soviet Economy." February 1975, 110 pp., plus Supplement,\* 106 pp. 9. Daniel L. Bond, 'A Comparison of the Soviet and U.S. Multiregional Interindustry Accounts." February 1975, 49 pp. \*\*10. Daniel L. Bond, "Input-Output Structure of a Soviet Republic the Latvian SSR, August 1975." (with an appendix by Gene Guill and Per Strangert), 126 pp. 11. Albina Tretyakova and Igor Birman, 'Notes on Input-Output Analysis in the USSR." August 1975, 37 pp. OUT OF PRINT. Published in the April 1976 issue of Soviet Studies (University of Glasgow), Vol. XXVIII, No. 2, pp. 157-188. Per Strangert, "Economies of Scale in the Soviet Industry" Inter-\*\*12. temporal, Regional and Branch Analysis." September 1975, 54 pp. \*\*13. Laurie Rogers Kurtzweg, "Structural Characteristics of the American and Soviet Economies: a Comparison Based on Input-Output Data. December 1975.+ 14. James W. Gillula, The 1966 Ukrainian Input-Output Table and an Analysis of the External Economic Relations of the Ukraine." December 1975, 65 pp. 15. James W. Gillula, "Input-Output Tables for Kazakh, Azerbaidzhan. and Estonian Soviet Republics for 1966. February 1976, 65 pp. \*\*16. Vladimir G. Treml and Gene D. Guill, "Conversion of Soviet Input-Output Tables to a New Price Base." May 1976.+ James W. Gillula, "The 1966 Input-Output Table for the RSFSR." 17. June 1976, 78 pp. James W. Gillula, 'The 1966 Input-Output Tables for Soviet Central 18. Asian Republics: Kirgizstan, Tadzhikistan, and Uzbekistan." August 1976, 77 pp. 19. Daniel L. Bond, "The 1966 Input-Output Tables for the Armenian and Georgian Soviet Republics." October 1976, 64 pp.

20. Albina Tretyakova, 'Labor and Capital in the Soviet Union by Republics." August 1977.

v

\* Supplements are not distributed with main papers but are available upon request.

\*\* Updated and revised editions of these papers will be published in October 1977 in a compendium edited by Vladimir G. Treml, <u>Studies in Soviet Input-Output</u> Analysis, Praeger Publishers, New York.

+ Not issued as a paper but included in the compendium.

Ī.

E

F

\*\*\*\*

1

Carl and a 1986

# Editor's Preface

The three Soviet national <u>ex post</u> input-output tables constructed to date, i.e., 1959, 1966, and 1972, have supplementary employment and fixed capital matrixes fully consistent with input-output methodology and commodity classification. Needless to say, these supplementary data greatly enhance the analytical value of Soviet tables and expand the scope of possible applications. It is surprising that in the ever growing Soviet empirical and theoretical literature on regional and republican inputoutput tables and analyses, so little is said about labor and capital in the regional framework. All available evidence indicates that none of the numerous republican and regional tables prepared to date in the USSR carry these supplementary data, and the only possible explanation lies in the paucity and shortcomings of the Soviet regional labor and capital statistics.

Mrs. Albina Tretyakova holds a degree of candidate of economic sciences and was employed by the Institute of Economics of the Academy of Sciences of the USSR until 1974 when she emigrated to the United States. An earlier version of this study was prepared by her for the Duke University-University of North Carolina Project on Soviet Input-Output Analysis early in 1976 to assist our team in construction of Soviet republican input-output tables. However, the analytical value of detailed sets of capital, depreciation, wags, and employment data by republics clearly goes beyond the immediate needs of table preparation and Mrs. Tretyakova agreed to expand and update the earlier study for release

vi

in the Occasional Papers series.

Ł

1

and a second second

In working on the revised version of the paper, Mrs. Tretyakova was helped by Mr. James W. Gillula who, until January of this year, was one of the principal researchers of our team and is now employed by the Foreign Demographic Analysis Division, Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce. Mr. Gillula also translated the text of the study into English.

Thanks are due to Mason Barnett, Paul Goldberg, and Patti Velasquez, Duke undergraduate students working with our project, and to Patricia Calebaugh, the research secretary of the project.

Vladimir G. Treml

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	INTRODUCTION	1
I.	FIXED CAPITAL AND DEPRECIATION	2
11.	EMPLOYMENT, WAGES, AND SOCIAL SECURITY PAYMENTS	13
	FOOTNOTES	25
	APPENDIX A. Capital stock and depreciation payments in major branches of the economy and 11 branches of industry by republic for the USSR in 1966.	27
	APPENDIX B. Average annual employment, monthly wages total wages paid, and social security payments in major branches of the economy and 12 branches of industry by republic for the USSR in 1966.	36
	BIBLIOGRAPHY	57

and the second s

1

.

L

1

Ī

Ŧ

viii

C. S. S. S. S. S. S.

# LIST OF TABLES

Table I.1 A Comparison of Capital Stock in Current Prices and in 1955 Prices: Fixed Capital in Uzbekistan, January 1, 1969 (millions of rubles).	3
Table I.2 Fixed Capital Stock in Major Branches of the Economy: Published USSR Totals and Sums of Republic Estimates, January 1, 1966 (billions of rubles).	9
Table I.3 Depreciation Rates as a Percentage of Year-Average Capital Stock for the USSR in 1966	12
Table II.1 Estimation of Employment in Private Agriculture Based on Land Holdings and Animal Husbandry	17
Table II.2 Revisions in Employment for 1966 in Industry, Con- struction, and Agriculture (revised data as percentage of employment under the old classification)	19
Table II.3 USSR Social Security Payments as a Percentage of Mages Paid	24
Table A.1 Fixed Capital Stock in Major Branches of the Economy by Republic for the USSR, January 1966 (millions of rubles)	28
Table A.2 Fixed Capital Stock in Major Branches of the Economy by Republic for the USSR, January 1, 1967 (millions of rubles)	29
Table A.3 Fixed Capital Stock in Major Branches of the Economy by Republic for the USSR, Year-Average 1966 (millions of rubles)	30
Table A.4 Branch Structure of Industrial Fixed Capital Stock by Republic for the USSR, January 1, 1966	31
Table A.5 Fixed Capital Stock in Branches of Industry by Republic for the USSR, Year-Average 1966	32
Table A.6 Depreciation Payments in Major Branches of the Economy and Branches of Industry by Republic for the USSR in 1966 (millions of rubles)	33
Table B.1 Employment in Major Branches of the Economy by Republic for the USSR in 1966 (thousands of employees)	37
Table B.2 Employment in Branches of Industry by Republic for the USSR in 1966 (thousands of employees)	38

1

ì

I.

ix

Table B.3 Average Monthly Wages in Major Branches of the Economy by Republic for the USSR in 1966 (rubles)	39
Table B.4 Average Monthly Mages in Branches of Industry by Republic for the USSR in 1966 (rubles)	40
Table B.5 Total Wage Payments in Major Branches of the Economy by Republic for the USSR in 1966 (millions of rubles)	41
Table B.6 Total Wage Payments in Branches of Industry by Republic for the USSR in 1966 (millions of rubles)	42
Table B.7 Total Social Security Payments in Major Branches of the Economy by Republic for the USSR in 1966 (millions of rubles)	43
Table B.8 Total Social Security Payments in Branches of Industry by Republic for the USSR in 1966 (millions of rubles)	44
Table B.9 Total Employment in Agriculture by Republic for the USSR in 1966 (thousands of employees)	45

I

I

1

÷

1

V 1 x

### INTRODUCTION

This study is focused on the employment of labor and capital in the 15 Soviet Union republics in 1966. The capital component (Part I) is presented in terms of values of fixed capital assets and depreciation payments and the labor component (Part II) in terms of average employment in man-years, wages, and social security payments.

Standard Soviet statistical sources such as the national and republican statistical handbooks and specialized statistical abstracts offer far less than complete coverage of the labor and capital series. In addition to major gaps in the data, there are inconsistencies among different sources and between republican and national handbooks. Thus, as will be apparent from the text below, a large share of the statistics presented had to be estimated by various methods and the collected and estimated data had to be put into a consistent format.

The study was undertaken for two purposes to provide a source for estimating components of the value-added quadrants for the republican input-output tables and as a basis for subsequent analysis of regional and republican differentials in labor and capital-output ratios and other comparative studies.

All data and estimates presented in this study are consistent with the methodology, definitions, and classifications employed by the Central Statistical Administration of the USSR.

It must be noted that Soviet input-output tables are constructed in terms of commodity statistics, i.e., reflect material, labor, and capital inputs into production of strictly defined commodity or group of similar commodities. On the other hand,

- 1 -

most economic data published in standard statistical sources are presented in terms of establishment statistics reflecting administrative divisions in production. Thus, Soviet statisticians in the process of preparation of input-output tables go through involved commodity-establishment adjustments.

No attempt was made to introduce these commodity-establishment adjustments into the data presented in this study and they all are in establishment terms. We do have a fairly good idea of the direction and magnitudes of commodity-establishment adjustments made in the 1966 national input-output table. However, there is very little information on these adjustments in material flows in republican tables and practically no information on commodityestablishment adjustments for labor and capital.

Estimates are first made for six or seven major branches of the economy such as agriculture and industry, and then for eleven to twelve individual industrial branches. The estimates are presented in a series of tables in two appendices and the basic methodology of estimation is described in the text of the study and in notes to the corresponding appendix tables.<sup>1</sup>

#### I. FIXED CAPITAL AND DEPRECIATION

Following the Soviet standard practice, fixed capital assets (<u>osnovnye fondy</u>) are defined as assets having useful life of more than one year or are valued at more than 50 rubles, and comprise buildings, structures, machinery and equipment as well as the productive herd in agriculture and long-term vegetation, but exclude land. Fixed capital assets are measured in so-called constant 1955 prices introduced in the general revaluation of the capital

~ 2 -

Table I.1 A Comparison of Capital Stock in Current Prices and in 1955 Prices: Fixed Capital in Uzbekistan, January 1, 1969 (millions of rubles).

	1* 1955 prices	2** current prices	column 1 divided by column 2
Total fixed capital	17,310	17,254	1.0032
Productive branches	10,937	10,981	.9959
Industry & Construction	4,749	4,767	.9962
Agriculture	3,731	3,761	.9920
Transport. & Comm.	1,768	1 772	.9977
Trade & Distr. & Other br.	689	681	1.0117
Nonproductive branches	6,373	6,273	1.0159

\*<u>NK UzSSR v 1968</u>, p. 28.

\*\*<u>NK UzSSR v 1969</u>, p. 29.

stock in 1960 and used, with only few exceptions, in Soviet statistical sources.

Depreciation charges are recorded by all Soviet producers having the nominal title to capital assets and are determined by state-fixed rates applicable to various types of capital assets. Rates introduced by a government decree in 1963 are used in this study. It must be noted, however, that depreciation payments are calculated in the USSR by applying the fixed rates to average annual values of capital stock recorded at book value (p<u>o balaneovoi stoimosti</u>) while in the absence of the necessary data we will use capital values measured in constant 1955 prices. The extent of the error involved in using capital stock in 1955 prices to compute depreciation payments

should not be great though, since price changes for the major components of capital formation over the 1955-1966 period were not significant. Values of capital stock in 1969 reported in statistical handbooks for Uzbekistan in both constant and current prices provide an example of the difference in these two measures of capital stock. (See Table I.1.)

The breakdown of capital stock by major branches of the economy in the national statistical handbooks for the USSR distinguishes seven productive and three nonproductive branches. Unfortunately, less information is given in the handbooks for many republics. Separate estimates of capital stock in 'Transportation' and in 'Communications' could not be made for all republics but a breakdown of the 'Transportation & Communications' total is reported here whenever possible. For most republics, capital stock in 'Other Branches of Material Production' is combined with the 'Trade & Distribution' branch, and no attempt was made to make separate estimates for these two branches. For nonproductive branches only the capital stock in 'Housing' was estimated separately for republics. The sum of fixed capital in all other branches was calculated as a residual from total capital stock in nonproductive branches.

Soviet statistical handbooks report the value or structure of capital stock as of January 1 of a given year. Thus, in order to estimate depreciation payments for 1966, estimates were made of capital stock by republic for both January 1, 1966 and January 1, 1967.

While the value of fixed capital by major branches of the economy is published each year in national statistical handbooks, comparable information in value terms is reported in republic statistical handbooks for less than half of all Union republics. For

- 4 -

all other republics, only information on the structure or rate of growth of fixed capital (in percentage terms) is published. The basic methodology used in estimating capital stock in major branches of the economy for each republic is summarized below: 1) Data in value terms for all branches on both January 1, 1966 and January 1, 1967 in 1955 prices were available for only one republic-Kirgizstan.

2) Data in value terms for all branches on January 1, 1966 but not January 1, 1967 were available for two republics - Georgia and Kazakhstan. Published growth rates for capital stock by sector were used to estimate values for January 1, 1967.

Two comments are necessary on the data for Kazakhstan. First, the published values of capital stock were reported to be the current values (<u>po balansovoi stoimosti</u>). However, no adjustment to these figures was made since, as noted above, the difference between capital stock in current and constant prices in 1966 was not great. Second, since these values for 1966 appeared in a statistical handbook published in 1972, it is assumed that they reflect a revision in earlier data for the republic required by the transfer of a small amount of territory from Uzbekistan to Kazakhstan in 1970.<sup>2</sup>

3) Data on capital stock in 1955 prices for all major branches of the economy have been published for some year other than 1966 or 1967 for four republics - the RSFSR, Latvia, Lithuania, and Uzbekistan.<sup>3</sup> These value data together with published rates of growth of capital stock were used to estimate values of fixed capital by major branch on January 1, 1966 and January 1, 1967 for these

- 5 -

four republics.

4) For five of the remaining republics, values of capital stock for all branches were derived from the published or estimated value of industrial fixed capital stock and the branch structure of capital stock (in percentage terms) on January 1 1966. Published information on the growth of capital stock in 1966 and/or the branch structure of capital stock at the end of the year was then used to estimate the value of fixed capital by branch on January 1, 1967.

The value of industrial fixed capital for Moldavia was taken as published in a book on the Moldavian economy (Tsaranov, 1975, p. 313).

Industrial fixed capital in Estonia was estimated from published values of fixed capital in sectors of the 'Wood & Paper Products' branch and the share of this branch in total industrial fixed capital (Margolin, 1970, p. 172-174).

Industrial fixed capital in Azerbaidzhan was estimated from the published value of fixed capital in 'Textiles & Apparel' (Allakhvesdov, 1967, p. 43) and the share of this branch in industrial fixed capital for the republic (NK USSR v 1965, p. 151).

Values of industrial fixed capital in Tadzhikistan and Turkmenistan were estimated from published shares of each of the four Central Asian republics in the industrial fixed capital for the Central Asian economic region (Mazanova, 1971, p. 151) and the known value for Kirgizstan. (See above.)

Information on the branch structure of fixed capital stock in Turkmenistan is not available for any year in the statistical

- 6 -

handbooks of the republic and could not be found in other sources. Therefore, using the estimated value of industrial fixed capital in Turkmenistan, the values of capital stock in other branches were estimated on the assumption that the branch structure of fixed capital in the republic was the same as the structure in the other three Central Asian republics combined.

5) Values of fixed capital stock by branch for Belorussia were based on the published branch structure (<u>Bel SSR za 50 let</u>, 1968, p. 41) and the estimated value of capital stock in 'Agriculture' on January 1, 1966. The value of fixed capital in <u>kolkhozes</u>, <u>sovkhozes</u>. and other government agricultural organizations was published (<u>Bel SSR za gody sov. vlasti</u>, 1967, p. 123). It will be noted that total fixed capital in 'Agriculture' includes the value of livestock in private ownership. This value was estimated independently, using the data on the relative shares of livestock in <u>kolkhozes</u>, <u>sovkhozes</u>, and private agriculture, and the published values of livestock in <u>kolkhozes</u> and sovkhozes (Be SSR v tsifrakh v 1969, p. 129).

6) Estimates of fixed capital by branch for the Ukraine were based on (a) the published value of industrial fixed capital stock on January 1, 1960 (<u>NH Uk RSR v 1960 p. 20</u>), (b) rates of growth of industrial fixed capital to January 1, 1966 and 1967, and (c) the branch structure of fixed capital stock on these two dates (<u>NH Uk</u> <u>RSR v 1968</u>, pp. 52, 97).<sup>4</sup>

7) Estimates for Armenia were based on (a) published figure for the total value of fixed productive capital on January 1, 1971 and the growth of this value from January 1, 1966 (<u>Armeniia v edinoi</u> sem'e..., 1972, pp. 13-14), (b) the branch structure of fixed capital

- 7 -

for the republic on January 1, 1966 (Isaakian, 1970, p. 54) and (c) rates of growth of capital stock in each branch during 1966 (NK Ar SSR v 1967, p. 22).

The values of capital stock in major branches of the economy for all republics on January 1, 1966 and 1967, estimated as described above, are presented in Appendix A, Tables A.1 and A.2 The USSR total for each branch in these two tables is the sum of estimates for all 15 republics. In all cases this branch total for all republics is less than the published branch total for the USSR. The sum of republic estimates is compared with the actual USSR capital stock in each branch on January 1, 1966, in Table I.2. While the sum of republic estimates for 'Industry' is close to the published USSR figure, for most other branches the sum of republic estimates is 3% to 6% less than the USSR value, and for 'Trade & Distribution' and 'Other Branches' combined, the sum of republic estimates falls short of the USSR total by more than 12%. While the estimates for several republics made here may be subject to considerable error. the discrepencies observed in Table I.2 may be explained in part by differences in branch classification at the national and republic levels. It is possible that the capital stock of enterprises subordinated to all-Union industries in several branches might be included in the USSR total but not assigned to any republic. Heavy construction equipment of all-Union construction trusts may be moved from one republic to another over time. In 'Transportation,' it is quite likely that the methodology of calculating the value of roads in many republics is not consistent with the methodology for the USSR as a whole. In particular all-Union highways may not be included in the values of capital stock of some republics. The

- 8 -

#### Table I.2 Fixed Capital Stock in Major Branches of the Economy: Published USSR Totals and Sums of Republic Estimates, January 1, 1966 (billions of rubles).

	1*	2**	column 1
	sum of	actual	as % of
	republics	USSR	column 2
Total fixed capital	500.9	518.0	96.7%
Productive branches	301.8	312.0	96.7
Industry	149.3	150.0	99.5
Construction	10.4	11.0	94.2
Agriculture	63.4	66.0	96.1
Transport. & Comm.	63.0	67.0	94.1
Trade & Distr. & Other br.	15.7	18.0	87.4
Nonproductive branches	199.1	206.0	96.7
Housing	134.5	141.0	95.4
Other nonproductive	64.6	65.0	99.4

\*Appendix A, Table A.1.

\*\*NK SSSR v 1965, p. 64.

valuation of capital stock in 'Trade & Distribution' is complicated by the fact that all-Union trade enterprises frequently lease space in buildings (such as apartment houses) which are included primarily in the capital stock of other branches. This problem may be treated differently at the national and republic levels.

For the purpose of calculating depreciation payments, the year-average value of capital stock by major branches in 1966 for all republics was calculated using the formula recommended in the instructions for plan formulation published by Cosplam:<sup>5</sup>

- 9 -

$$\bar{K} = K_{1} + 0.35 (K_{1} - K_{2})$$

where

**K** = year-average capital stock

 $K_{a}$  = capital stock at the beginning of the year.

 $K_1 = capital stock at the end of the year.$ 

- 10 -

These year-average values of capital stock are given in Appendix A., Table A.3.

Information in value terms on capital stock in individual branches of industry is not published in Soviet statistical handbooks. However, a table showing the shares of major branches in industrial fixed capital stock at the beginning of the year for all republics as well as the USSR as a whole is normally published in the annual handbook for the USSR. This table for the structure of capital stock on January 1, 1966 (from NK SSSR v 1965, pp. 150-151) is reproduced in Appendix A, Table A.4. A comparable table for January 1, 1967 is not available, however, since the shorter anniversary handbook for the USSR published in 1967 did not include this table. Since complete information was also not available in republic statistical handbooks on the growth of capital stock in all branches of industry in 1966 or the branch structure of industrial fixed capital at the end of the year, the branch structure in Table A.4 was used to calculate year-average values of industrial capital by branch for.all republics on the assumption that the year-average structure was close to that at the beginning of the year. These yearaverage values are given in Table A.5.

Information on the value of depreciation payments (for major branches of the economy) or depreciation payments as a percentage of year-average capital stock (for branches of industry) has been published for less than half of all Union republics, and in all cases these depreciation data cover only enterprises subordinated to the Council of Ministers of the republic. In 1970, the share of industrial output subordinated to republic Councils of Ministers was as little as 12-13% in Kazakhstan, Tadzhikistan, and Moldavia, and as high as 60% in the RSFSR.<sup>6</sup> Therefore depreciation payments in branches of 'Industry' and other productive branches by republic in 1966 were approximated by applying USSR depreciation rates by branch to the estimated year-average values of capital stock for republics. The USSR depreciation rates used are given in Table I.3, and the estimated values of depreciation payments by republic are given in Appendix A, Table A.2.

- 11 -

Table I.3 Depreciation Rates as a Percentage of Year-Average Capital Stock for the USSR in 1966 (%)\*

Industry average	7.3
Ferrous metallurgy	7.1
Fuels	8.7
Electrical & thermal power	4.9
Machine building & metal working	7.6
Chemical products	7.2
Wood & paper products	10.4
Construction materials	7.9
Glass & porcelain	7.4
Textiles & apparel	6.7
Food products	7.3
Ind. NEC & nonferrous metals	6.6
Construction	12.7
Agriculture	6.0
Transportation & Communication	5.5
Trade & Distribution & Other branches	5.2

\*percentage rates for branches of industry from NK SSSP v 1967, page 220, except 'Industry NEC & Nonferrous metallurgy' calculated as a residual given the branch structure of industrial capital and the industry average depreciation rate; percentage rates for other major branches calculated from year-average capital stock and published values of depreciation payments (NK SSSR v 1967, p. 883) depreciation payments by kolkhozes estimated from Kharitonov, 1972, p. 20.

#### 11. EMPLOYMENT, WAGES, AND SOCIAL SECURITY PAYMENTS

As with the capital data, this study employs the standard Soviet definition of employment, wages, and social security payments.

Thus, employment is defined as average annual permanent labor force measured in man-years. Workers and employees who were absent from their places of work part of the year, due to illness or leaves, are counted in terms of full-year equivalent regardless of whether they were receiving wages, leave pay, or social security benefits (e.g., female employees on pregnancy leaves).

Soviet statistics of employment in agriculture are notoriously defective. The average annual employment in <u>sovkhozes</u> and other state agricultural organizations is recorded in average manyears derived on a month-by-month basis. These figures are adjusted upward to reflect part-time and seasonal employees. Kolkhoz employment is reported on the basis of monthly average employment records, regardless of the number of days actually worked in the given month. The estimates of labor engaged in private agriculture are probably subject to significant error. This group is comprised of kolkhoz and sovkhoz members and urban employees who spend some time on their private plots, as well as members of their families who for one reason or another (i.e., age, status) are not registered as full or part-time employees elsewhere. The method used to distribute this total among republics is described elsewhere.

Wages are defined as direct payments to employees: including various bonuses paid out of special profit and other funds. Wage totals include annual leave pay, but not social security benefits.

#### - 13 -

In addition to money wages, Soviet workers receive other material benefits such as subsidized housing, meals served in factory cafeterias, and the like, but the cost of these benefits while comprising an element of cost of labor is not included in wages.

The case of agriculture is more difficult. Only sovkhoz workers receive wages as defined above, and this is the only wage income shown in our tables. Agricultural labor generates other types of income such as the money income and income-in-kind received by kolkhoz members: earnings from sales of produce grown on private plots by kolkhoz, sovkhoz, and some urban households as well as consumption in kind of these households. Since these income-type receipts are not wages proper, they have been excluded from this study.

Data on 1966 employment by republic for major branches of the economy and most individual branches of industry have been published in statistical handbooks. This type of information for 1966 (as well as for 1965 and 1960) was included in a statistical handbook for labor published in 1968.<sup>7</sup> However, some of the data given in this handbook have been slightly revised in later statistical publications as a result of minor changes in the sectoral classification of some workers, which was instituted in 1968. For the USER as a whole in 1966, approximately 57 of agricultural workers - according to the pre-1968 classification - were reclassified into various branches of industry and construction. Thus, in order to ensure comparability of the data presented in this paper with data for later years, an effort was made to assemble or estimate employment for all republics based on the post-1968 classification system.

Data on average annual employment (number of workers and employees) for major branches of the aconomy are presented in Appendix

- 14 -

B, Table B.1. In the process of making these estimates, employment in 'Construction' was broken down into two categories. Prior to 1970, most statistical handbooks reported only the employment in 'Construction-Assembly Work' (stroitel'no-montashnye raboty). Recent handbooks give a total employment figure for 'Construction,' which includes capital repair, drilling, and design-survey organizations.<sup>8</sup> Data on employment in these construction-related activities for 1965 have been published in recent republic statistical handbooks, but no data are available for 1966. Therefore, 1966 employment by republic was estimated by applying the share of each republic in 1965 to the USSR total employment in these constructionrelated activities in 1966. Agricultural employment as shown in Table B.1 includes only the two components of state agricultural employment as reported in the employment section of Soviet statistical handbooks - 'Sovkhozes and Auxiliary Agriculture Enterprises' and 'Other State Agriculture' which includes organizations serving agriculture and veterinarians. Total agricultural employment includes in addition employment in kolkhozes and in private agriculture. Employment in kolkhozes by republic in 1966 is published (NK SSSR v 1968, p. 447). Estimation of employment in private agriculture presents a number of problems. As it was pointed out above, the labor force in private agriculture is a heterogeneous group consisting of full-time kolkhoz, soykhoz, and even urban workers and employees allocating part of their free time to private plots, and members of their families who may be spending anywhere from a couple of days to a full year on their family plots. The method used in this study was developed by the staff of the Foreign Demographic Analysis Division, Department of Commerce (Rapawy, pp. 40-41) and while not

- 15 -

perfect, seems to yield the best estimates in as far as they could have been checked against other data such as rural population and census employment statistics. The method consists of applying 1958 private labor inputs in man-days to the published data on land and cattle in private agriculture and then converting the total into 280-day man-year equivalents. This method yields a USSR total estimate of 12,902,000 man-years but that figure includes the <u>kolkhoz</u> and <u>sovkhoz</u> workers who have already been counted under their respective organizations and who spent only a part of their time on private plots. We will assume that private plot workers not employed elsewhere are distributed proportionally to the total and apply the percent distribution to the total of 6,020 man-years of private agricultural labor used in the 1966 input-output table (see Table II.1) Total agricultural employment is summarized in 40 pendix B, Table B.9.

Employment in the seven "nonproductive" branches is shown as a single total for each republic. 1966 data for six of these branches were published in <u>Trud</u>. However, no information was available on 1966 employment in 'Art,' and it was estimated by applying the share of each republic in 1965 to the USSR total employment in 'Art' in 1966.

Information on employment reflecting the post-1968 classification was available for nine republics and the USSR as a whole. For the remaining six republics, industrial employment was taken from NK USSR v 1968, p. 206. Employment in 'Construction-Assembly Work' and 'Sovkhosy and Auxiliary Agricultural Enterprises' was estimated by calculating a ratio of employment according to the new and old classifications in 1965 for these two sectors in each republic.

- 16 -

# Table II.1Estimation of Employmentin Private Agriculture Based on LandHoldings and Animal Husbandry

	Land 1,000 hectr.	Horned animals 1,000s	Pigs 1,000s	Sheep and Goats 1,000s	Man-yrs. 1,000s	Percent	Estimates
USSR	7,760	29,264	16,537	33 <sub>7</sub> 303	12,902	100.0%	6,020
RSFSR	3,440	14,165	6 <sub>:</sub> 849	<b>19 ,797</b>	6,045	46.85	2,820
Ukraine	2,420	5,507	5,318	1,186	3,064	23.75	1,430
Moldavia	170	205	255	1,153	190	1.47	88
Beloru <b>ssia</b>	550	1,710	1,862	423	850	6.59	397
Latvia	130	360	266	327	182	1.41	85
Lithuania	270	648	767	171	364	2.82	170
Estonia	70	158	119	167	88	.68	41
Georgia	170	919	382	82 <b>9</b>	346	2.68	161
Armenia	40	251	28	923	100	.78	47
Azerbaidzh.	03	853	32	1,574	266	2.06	124
Kazakh	160	2,028	564	2,490	627	4.36	293
Uzbek	130	1,484	22	1,713	432	3.35	202
Kirgiz	70	307	63	707	128	.99	60
Tadzhik	40	454	8	838	139	1.08	65
Turkmen	20	215	2	1,005	80	.62	37

First column: NK SSSR v 1967. p. 344 and Selkhoz, 1971. 2nd. 3rd, and 4th columns. Selkhoz SSSR, 1971, pp. 253, 261, and 265, 5th column. Using the following labor inputs: land - 166 mandays per hectar, horned animals - 54.2 man-days per head, pigs -20.6 man-days, and sheep and goats, 5.6 man-days. The total was adjusted by 1.1 coefficient to reflect private ownership of poultry and converted into 280-man-days/year equivalents (Rapawy, pp. 40-41).

-----

These ratios were applied to 1966 employment for these sectors given in <u>Trud</u>. With the exception of Kazakhstan and Uzbekistan, employment in all other sectors was then taken directly from <u>Trud</u>. Estimates for all sectors in these two republics were made to reflect the transfer of territory from Uzbekistan to Kazakhstan mentioned in Part I. Ratios of employment in 1965 reflecting new boundaries as well as new classification to employment in 1965 based on old boundaries and classification were calculated for each sector and applied to the corresponding data for 1966 given in Trud.

In order to illustrate the effects of the 1968 classification change on employment by major branches in republics, some ratios of employment according to the new and old classifications for 'Industry,' 'Construction,' and 'Agriculture,' are presented in Table II.2.

While revised data on employment by major branches of the economy in 1966 reflecting the 1968 classification change were available for most republics, less data were found in republic statistical handbooks on the revised employment by branches of industry. In addition, employment data are not published in all republics for 'Nonferrous Metallurgy,' 'Chemical Products,' 'Glass and Porcelain,' and 'Ferrous Netallurgy,' either according to the pre-1968 classification in <u>Trud</u>, or according to the new classification. Three different basic methods were used to estimate industrial employment according to the revised classification, depending on the type of information which was available.

1) Where information was available on employment in 1965 according to both old and new classifications, a ratio was calculated to adjust data for 1966 given in Trud.

## Table II.2 Revisions in Employment for 1966 in Industry, Construction, and Agriculture (revised data as percentage of employment under the old classification)\*

Ţ

•

1

-

•••••

	Industry	Construction	Agriculture
USSR	101.5%	101.8%	94.6%
RSFSR	101.4	101.9	94.2
Ukraine	100.7	102.5	94.9
Moldavia	100.8	100.9	98.5
Belorussia	102.4	100.3	95.2
Lithuania	101.0	100.9	97.3
Estonia	101.7	102.1	92.9
Armenia	100.7	101.5	97.2
Azerbaidzhan	100.5	100.8	98.4
Tadzhikistan	100.6	101.9	96.5

\*old classification data: Trud, pp. 25,42-71; new classification data: Appendix B, Table B.1. (Construction employment is Construction-Assembly work only.)

2) In some cases revised 1966 data were available only for the narrower category of number of workers (<u>rabochii</u>), and it was necessary to calculate total employment (<u>promyshlenno-proizvodstvennyi</u> <u>personal</u>) using a ratio of the share of workers in total employment in 1965 from Trud.

3) Many estimates of employment in branches omitted in statistical handbooks were made on the basis of information on the shares of these sectors in total employment published in other sources. Where employment could be estimated only for a year other than 1966, the rate of growth of employment from 1966 to the base year was estimated by dividing the published rate of growth of total output by the rate of growth of labor productivity (output per employee) between the two years.

The estimates of industrial employment by branch for all republics are presented in Appendix B, Table B.2. Sources and methods used in making these estimates are summarized for each republic in the notes to this table. Employment was known to be zero in the 'Metallurgy' and 'Fuels' branches for some republics, and in several instances it was assumed to be negligible. <sup>9</sup> Estimates of employment in 'Glass and Porcelain' according to the revised classification were made initially for all but the three major producing republics (the RSFSR, the Ukraine, and Belorussia). The rest-of-the-USSR residual was then allocated among these three republics according to their relative shares of employment in 1966, according to the old classification (Trud, pp. 91, 93, 95).<sup>10</sup> Estimates of employment in several branches for the RSFSR were adjusted slightly so that the sum of republic employment for each branch would agree with the published USSR total. (See the notes to Table B.2.) Employment in Industry N.E.C. 'was calculated as a residual for all republics.

The 1968 change in employment classification affected data on average monthly wages as well. For major branches of the economy, revised data on wages in 1966 were published in the statistical handbooks of 11 republics. For Georgia, published wages in 1966 according to the old classification were adjusted slightly, using data on wages in 1965 according to both old and new classifications. For Kirgizstan and Turkmenistan, only wages in 1965 were available. For each of these republics, wages in 1966 were estimated by multiplying the 1965 wage rates by the USSR rate of growth of wages in each branch in 1966. Only a single figure for average monthly wages in the economy as a whole was published for Kazakhstan. Therefore, wages in each branch for Kazakhstan were estimated as a residual.

- 20 -

Total average monthly wages paid were calculated for the USSR as a whole and for the sum of all republics, excluding Kazakhstan (as a product of wage rates and employment). The difference of these two figures for each branch was then divided by the corresponding employment figure for Kazakhstan to estimate average monthly wages for this republic.

Separate wage estimates were made for each of the two components of employment in 'Construction' and in 'Agriculture.' Wages in 1966 for the major component of 'Construction' employment ('Constructioa-Assembly Work') were published in republic statistical handbooks. In order to estimate wages in 'Other Construction-Related Activities,' however, for most republics it was necessary to first calculate average wages for this branch in 1965.<sup>11</sup> The ratio of republic to national wages in 1965 was then applied to the national average wage in 1966 for these construction-related activities.<sup>12</sup> For the major component of government agricultural employment ('Sovkhozy and Auxiliary Enterprises'), average wages in 1966 were either taken from republic statistical handbooks or derived as described above (for Georgia, Kirgizstan, Turkmenistan, and Kazakhstan). Average wages in 'Other Government Agriculture' were derived from published wage and employment data for all government agriculture and for 'Sovkhozy and Auxiliary Enterprises' separately, with the exception of the Ukraine, Lithuania, Estonia, Kazakhstan, and Tadshikistan. For these five republics the sum of wage payments (calculated as a residual for the USSR as a whole) was divided by the corresponding sum of employment to derive an average wage which was used for each.

For the 'Forestry' branch average wages have been published for only five republics (Moldavia, Belorussia, Estonia, Georgia, and

- 21 -

Kirgizstan). For all other republics the average wage in 'Forestry' was assumed to be equal to that for '<u>Sovkhozy</u> and Auxiliary Enterprises.' The single average wage given here for the nonproductive sphere was calculated as a weighted average for each republic from data on wages and employment in all subdivisions.<sup>13</sup> Total wage payments in 'Other Branches' was calculated as a residual, subtracting estimated wage payments in all other branches from the economy total. An average wage for 'Other Branches' was then calculated, dividing this residual by employment in 'Other Branches.' However, any errors in previous estimations will be reflected in these wage rates.

Values of average monthly wages in major branches of the economy, compiled and estimated as described above, are given in Appendix B, Table B.3.

Values of average monthly wages in individual branches of 'Industry' have been published in the statistical handbooks of only six republics - Belorussia, Latvia, Lithuania, Armenia, Uzbekistan, and Kirgizstan. A recently published table of coefficients reflecting relative wages by branch of industry on 16 economic regions provides information for estimating average monthly wages in some other republics. <sup>14</sup> However, the usefulness of this table of coefficients is limited by the fact that coefficients are given for individual economic regions within the RSFSR and the Ukraine, while only single columns of coefficients are given for the groups of republics in the Baltic, Transcaucases, and Central Asian economic regions, and no information is given for Belorussia, Moldavia; and Kazakhstan. Furthermore, the coefficients for the 'Metallurgy,' 'Power,' and 'Wood and Paper' branches for many regions produce estimates which are inconsistent with the limited amount of wage

- 22 -

information available from statistical handbooks. Therefore, wages in several republics were estimated, using coefficients of relative wages in neighboring republics, for which data have been published in statistical handbooks. These estimates, which are presented and described in Appendix B, Table B.4, are probably the least reliable in this study and must be considered only an approximation of actual wages by branch for republics.

Values of total wage payments in 1966 by republic in major branches of the economy and 12 branches of industry, calculated from the wage rates estimated above, are presented in Tables B.5 and B.6. The value of social security payments in each branch by republic was estimated by applying published USSR average social security rates (as a percentage of wages) to the values of wage payments in each republic. These USSR average rates are given in Table II.3, and the values of social security payments by branch for all republics are presented in Tables B.7 and B.8.

- 23 -

# Table II.3 USSR Social Security Payments as a Percentage of Wages Paid\*

Ferrous metallurgy	7.92
Nonferrous metallurgy	7.9
Fuels	8.9
Electric: 1. & Chermal. power	6.6
Machine building & metal working	7.7
Chemical products	8.4
Wood & paper products	4.7
Construction materials	6.1
Glas <b>s &amp; porcelain</b>	6.1
Textiles & apparel	6.8
Food products	6.8
Industrial N.E.C.	4.7
Construction	6.1
Agriculture & Forestry	4.4
Transportation & Communications	5.3
Trade & Distribution	4.5
Other branches	5.5
Nonproductive branches	5.5

\*Zakharov and Piskov, 1972, pp. 392-393.

- 24 -

I

-----

• •
### Footnotes

<sup>1</sup> Citations to statistical handbooks throughout the paper are given in an abbreviated form. If the title of the handbook includes the year, no publication date is given in these short citations. However, if the title does not include the year, the publication date is given. <u>NK</u> = <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo</u>. Full citations are given in the bibliography.

All estimates in this paper were made to be consistent with revised data reflecting the new boundaries of these two republics. For Uzbekistan these revisions first appeared in the annual statistical handbook for 1971, published in 1972.

<sup>3</sup> Values of capital stock by major branch in Uzbekistan for 1966 and 1967 were also published in a 1968 Uzbek handbook (<u>NK Uz SSR v 1967</u>, p. 27), but these are data in current values for capital stock before the revision of the republic's boundaries.

The growth rates given here were for industrial capital stock at the end of each year as a percentage of year-end 1960. The rate of growth for 1960 was assumed equal to the average annual rate for the 1960-1965 period.

<sup>5</sup> Metodicheskie ukazaniia ..., 1974, p. 76.

<sup>6</sup> Granberg, 1973, p. 24 and Pavlenko, 1971, p. 46.

7 <u>Trud v SSSR</u>, Moscow: <u>Statistika</u>, 1968, hereafter referred to as Trud.

<sup>o</sup> Prior to 1970, employment in these sectors was included in the 'Other Branches' category.

According to 1966 republican input-output data: there was no production of 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' in Moldavia, Belorussia, and Estonia: no 'Ferrous Metallurgy' in Turkmenistan, and no 'Fuels' in Moldavia (A. G. Granberg, 1975, p. 105). Employment was assumed to be negligible in 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' for Latvia, Lithuania, and Turkmenistan, in 'Ferrous Metallurgy' for Moldavia, Estonia, Kirgizstan, and Tadzhikistan, and in 'Fuels' for Armenia.

10 This adjustment was necessary since employment in glass and porcelain industry according to revised 1966 data in only 90.4% of that reported in <u>Trud</u>. 11 These wage rates were derived from data in recent republic handbooks on employment and wages in 'Construction' as a whole and in 'Construction-Assembly Work' separately. 1966 data were available for the Ukraine, Moldavia Belorussia, and Azerbaidzhan.

<sup>12</sup> For four republics (Georgia, Kazakhstan, Uzbekistan, and Tadzhikistan), 1965 wage data for this branch were not available. The sum of wage payments in these construction-related activities in these four republics (calculated as a residual for the USSR as a whole) was divided by the corresponding sum of employment to derive an average wage which was used for each.

13 Average wages in 'Art' (<u>Iskusstvo</u>) in 1966 were estimated for most republics by applying the ratio of republic to national wages in 1965 to estimated USSR monthly wages in 1966. For five republics (Belorussia, Estonia, Georgia, Kazakhstan, and Tadzhikistan), no wage data were available. An average residual wage rate was calculated for these republics.

The second s

14 Loginov, 1975, pp. 288-289. These coefficients apparently apply to wages in some year around 1970. See Feshbach, 1975.

### Appendix A

Capital stock and depreciation payments in major branches of the economy and 11 branches of industry by republic for the USSR in 1966.

رجابها ودخلهم الم

TABLE A.1 FIXED CAPITAL STOCK IN MAJOR BRANCHES OF THE ECONOMY BY REPUBLIC FOR THE USSR, JANUARY 1, 1966 (Millions of Rubles)

ŝ

÷

• -1

i I I

I

	USSR SUM	RSFSR	UKRAINE	MOLDAV	BELORUS	LATVIA	LITHUAN	ESTONIA
TOTAL FIXED CAPITAL	500925.	10300.	. 89433.	4075.	11617.	6660.	5759.	4089.
PRODUCTIVE BRANCHES	301813.	186800.	52676.	2429.	6960.	3823.	3525.	2470.
INDUSTRY	149294.	98400	26025 /	762.	2588.	13 <b>85</b> .	1325.	1051.
CONSTRUCTION	10365.	6800.	1163,	69.	201.	127.	121.	61.
AGRICULTURE	63404.	31700.	12431.	1064.	2257.	1066.	1238.	5A1.
TRANSPORT & COMMUNIC	63021.	41200.	10195.	379.	1524.	1072.	639.	650.
_		ł		350.	1430.	972.	576.	
COMMUNICATION				29.	94.	£0.	63.	
TRADE & DIST + OTHER	15729.	8700.	2862.	155.	390.	213.	202.	127.
NONPRODUCTIVE BRANCHES	199112.	123500.	36757.	1646.	4857.	2837.	2234.	19
HOUSING	134489.	e	25846.	1210.	3485.	1865.	1549.	60
OTHER NONPRODUCTIVE	64623.	41300.	10911.	436.	1371.	972.	685.	571
	GEORGIA	ARMENIA	AZERB	KAZAKH	UZBEK	KIRGIZ	TADZHIK	TURKMEN
TOTAL FIXED CAPITAL	8831.	3910.	8261	26205.	11686.	3356.	3036.	000
PRODUCTIVE PRANCHES	4981.	2150.	5502.	17181.	74:65.	2076.	1776.	0
INDUSTRY	2151.	1075.	3230.	6482.	2776.	723.	583.	738
CONSTRUCTION	. 185.	82.	248 4	659.	・オのの	A5.	130.	100.
AGRICULTURE	1545.	559.	925.	5210.	2555.	839.	695.	739.
TRANSPORT & COMMUNIC	598.	328.	.106	3510.	. 1270.	248.	231.	316.
<b>TRANSPORTATION</b>	560.	289.	851.	3322.		219.	201.	•
COMMUNICATION	38.	39.	50.	188.		- 62	30.	•
TRADE & DIST + OTHER	502.	106.	198,	1320.	530.	241.	137.	146.
NONPRODUCT.IVE BRANCHES	3850.	1760.	2759.	9024.	4423.	1320.	1260.	1266.
POUSING	2523.	1142.	1850.	ŝ	2969.	892.	786.	838.
OTHER NONPRODUCTIVE	1327.	618.	•606	72	1454.	438 •	474.	428.

۰.

TABLE A.2 FIXED CAPITAL STOCK IN MAJOR BRANCHES OF THE ECONOMY BY REPUBLIC FOR THE USSR, JANUARY 1, 1967 (Millions of Rubles)

2 

I

I

1

4

1

•

7

÷ - -

-

I

1

......

	USSR SUM	RSFSR	UKRAINE	MOLDAV	BELORUS	LATVIA	LITHUAN	ESTONIA
TOTAL FIXED CAPITAL	532804.	327200.	95176.	4427.	12691.	7048.	6292.	・わせわせ
PRODUCTIVE BRANCHES	325407.	200000	56630.	2669.	7589.	4102.	3914.	2654.
	162550.	106600.	28172.	859.	2893.	15n6.	1485.	1147.
CONSTRUCTION	11699.	7500.	1333.	84.	254.	178.	145.	74.
AGRICULTURE	67131.	33000.	13134 .	1155.	239A.	1141.	1384.	621.
TRANSPORT & COMMUNIC	67042.	+3600.	10850.	- 10 m	1638.	1049.	573.	673.
PT.		P 1	-	372.	1498.	1023.	604.	* -2
COMMUNICATION	١.			31.	140.	66.	• 69 •	*
TRANE & DIST + OTHER	16985.	9300.	3141.	168.	406.	228.	227.	139.
NONPRODUCTIVE BRANCHES	207397.	127200.	38546	1758.		2946.	2378.	1689.
	142253	97100.	26744.	1268.		1935.	1630.	1001.
OTHER NONPRODUCTIVE	£5144.	40100	11402.	•06	1382.	1011.	748.	608.
	GFORGIA	ARMENIA	AZERB	KAZAKH	UZBEK	KIRGIZ	TADZHIK	TURKMEN
DTAL FIXED CAPITAL	9424.	4254.	8756.	28763.	13651.	3630.	(** 	3650.
PRODUCTIVE PRANCHES	5346.	24:7.	955	18913.	8654.	2394.	CV)	2279.
INDUSTRY	2347.	12.9.	3408	7263.	3359.	842.		806.
CONSTRUCTION	202.	121.	282	744.	404	240.		110.
ABPTCULTURE	1624.	588.	1005.	5585.	2939.	918.		857.
TRANSPORT & COMMUNIC	635.	352.	932	3868.	. 1390.	330.		347.
-	595.	<b>30</b> 6,	879.	3658.		297.		
COMMUNICATION	40.	46.	53.	210.		• E £	35.	
TRADE & DIST + OTHER	536.	137.	228 .	1453.	562.	154.		159.
NOMPRODUCTIVE BRANCHES	4068.	1847	2901.	9850.	4997.	1446.	1298.	1371.
	2687.	1233.	1932.	6907.	3410.	928.	786.	892.
OTHER NONPRODUCTIVE	1361.	614.	969.	2943.	1587.	518.	512.	479.

101 -

l

I

l

STREET, STREET,

ţ

### TABLE A.J FIXED CAPITAL STOCK IN MAJOR BRANCHES OF THF ECONOMY BY REPUBLIC FOR THE USSR, YEAR-AVERAGE 1966 (Millions of Rubles)

	USSR SUM	RSFSR	UKRAINE	MOLDAV	BELORUS	LATVIA	LITHUAN	ESTONIA
TOTAL FIXED CAPITAL	512083.	316215.	91443. 54050.	4198.	12123. 7180.	6796. 3921.	5946.	4178. 2514
PRUDUCITVE PRANCHES INDUCTRY	153934	101270.	26776.	796.	2695.	1427.	1381.	1075.
CONSTRUCTION	10832.	7045.	1222.	74.	220.	.174	129.	66.
AGRICULTURE	64708.	32155.	12677.	1096.	2306.	1692.	1289.	595.
TRANSPORT & COMMUNIC	£4428.	42040.	10424.	387.	1564.	1052.	651.	658.
				358.	1454.	•006	586.	2
COMMINICATION				30.	110.	£2.	65.	.1
TRADE & DIST + OTHER	16169.	8910.	2960.	160.	396.	218.	211.	131.
NONPRODUCTIVE REANCHES	202012.	124795.	383	9	·0+6+	2875.	2284.	643
	137206.	-	160	1230.	3569.	18A9.	1577.	1060.
OTHER NONPRODUCTIVE	64805.	40580.	11223.	455.	1375.	986.	707.	294
	GFORGIA	ARMENIA	AZERB	HXAZAKH	UZBEK	KIRGIZ	TADZHIK	TURKMEN
TOTAL FIXED CAPITAL	9035.	4034	8434	27100.	12505.	5	3128.	1 1 1
F PRANCHES	5109.	2243.	5626.	1787.	7881.	2158.	1958°	2123
INDUSTRY	2220.	1125.	3292.	5755.	2980.	745.	604°	762
CONSTRUCTION	191.	96.	260,	689.	354.	104.	145,	10
AGRICUL TURE	1573.	569.	953.	5341.	2689.	847.	725.	780.
TPANSPORT & COMMUNIC	611.	336.	912.	3635.	. 1312.	277.	240 ·	32
TRANSPORTATION	572.	295.	861.	.0145		246.	210.	1
NICATION	39.	41.	51.	196.		30.	32.	4.
TRADE & DIST + OTHER	515.	117.	208.	:367.	541.	146.	140.	
NONPRODUCTIVE RANCHES	3926.	1790.	2809.	5313.	4624.	1364.	1273.	
	2580.	1174.	1879.	6509.	3123.	808°	786.	857
OTHER NONPRODUCTIVE	1346.	617.	930.	2104.	1501.	466.	487.	

·

TABLE A.4 BRANCH STRUCTURE OF INDUSTRIAL FIXED CAPITAL STOCK BY REPUBLIC FOR THE USSR+ JANUARY 1, 1966 (%)

and the second states of the

ないで、「ない」ので、

ł

· · · · · · · · · · ·

...

4

I

I

l

FERROUS METALLURGY FUELS FUELS ELEC & THERM POWER MACH BLOG & METAL WRKNG CHEMICAL PRODUCTS CHEMICAL PRODUCTS CHEMICAL PRODUCTS CONSTRUCTION WATERIALS CONSTRUCTION WATERIALS CONSTRUCTION WATERIALS 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4	01000000000000000000000000000000000000	100.00 100.00000000	CONF.000000000 66100 0000 1 1 1 2 0	2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 200	0940N0F900 AF&CF0FFF0 4N	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0
A THERM POWER A THERM POWER CAL PRODUCTS A PAPER PRODUCTS A PAPER PRODUCTS A PORCELAIN A PORCELAIN A PORCELAIN CAL PRODUCTS C. + NONFER MFT 100.0 11.3 CAL PRODUCTS A THERM POWER A THERM P	110101010 110		0 4 4 0 0 4 6 0 0 4 4 0 0 0 4 4 0 0 0 0	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0	9 4 6 N 0 N 9 8 6 F 4 6 N 6 N 6 N 6 N 6 F 4 N	20.0	
A THERM POWER BLOG A METAL WRKNG 19.0 CAL PRODUCTS A PAPER PRODUCTS B.5 5.6 FUCTION WATERIALS A PORCELAIN A PORCELAIN LES & APPAREL PRODUCTS .E.C. + NONFER MFT 0.2 C. + NONFER MFT 7.1 0.0 0 10.0 11.3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	101010 1010 1010		6 4 7 4 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	20.0 20.4 20.4 20.4 20.4 20.4 20.4 20.4		20.4	13.9
19.0 8.3 9.5 10.0 14.9 11.3 7.8 7.8 7.8		6 4 4 N N P N O	0111 0010	26.7 8.8 8.1 8.5 1.5 8.1 8.5 1.5 8.5	0 N O F Ø Ø C F Ø F F F Ø N	(	27.0
556 59.5 50.6 50.6 10.0 11.3 224.3 11.3 7.8	0 1 0 t 0 1 0 1 0	948 8989		0.00 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10	NON000 F 5 F F F 6	7.1	11.3
6 6F0R61 A AR 11.44 66 66 14.9 AR 11.44 9 AR 11.44 9 AR 11.44 9 AR	0 4 0 t 0 1	48 8000	0 + 1 4 0 N	~ 00 H 00 H	0 - 0 0	5.1	2.4
6 6F0R61 A AR	0 40 0	0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	10. 477.00	<b>00 +1 00 +1</b>		6.9	6.4
T 100.0 100.0 14.9 14.9 11.3 7.8 7.8	3010	<b>ND N</b> O	0 H 1 1		9.4	10.4	9 • B
ES & APPAREL 4.44 RODUCTS 9.2 E.C. + NONFER MFT 7.1 STRY TOTAL 100.0 1 STRY TOTAL 100.0 1 S METALLURGY 6FORGIA ARM S METALLURGY 6.0 THERM POWER 24.3 LDG & METAL WRANG 11.3 LDG & METAL WRANG 11.3	3010	NO PO	474 00 11 12	<b>0</b> +	8° 4	5.	~.
R MFT 7.1 7.1 100.0 1 60061A AR 14.9 6.0 24.3 11.3 7.8		0000	47. 00.	-			10 • C
R MFT 7.1 100.0 1 60061A AR 14.9 6.0 24.3 11.3 7.8	<b>~</b> 8	500	100	ł	<b>N</b> . N		
100.0 1 660RGIA AR 14.9 6.0 24.3 11.3 7.8	8	00	00		2.1	4.2	-
GFORGIA ARN 14.9 6.0 24.3 11.3 7.8				100.0	100.0		100.0
GFORGIA ARN 14.9 6.0 24.3 24.3 7.8		I				4	
14.9 6.0 24.3 11.3 7.8	ARMENIA	AZERB	KAZAKH	UZBEK	KIRGIZ	TADVETK	TURKNEN
6.0 24.3 24.3 7.8	3.				••	0. O	0.
24.3 BRKNG 11.3 7.8	0.	10	ŝ	11.9	20.2	り。さ	đ
WRKNG 11.3 7.8	25.9			20.4	14.8	0.15	•
7.8	17.6	9	-	13.9	1ו0	9.1	4.4
	15-5		4.4	6.3		1.1	•
ucts 2.8	1.5	2.	•	1.9		<b>1</b> • <del>4</del>	۹.
s 6.7	6.9	ю. Э	Р) • <b>С</b> •	. 10.4	<b>5°</b> 0	13.8	5.2
t.	۲.	\$	0	<b>n</b> .	-	•. •	<b>C</b> ,
EC & APPAREI 5.8	7.1			11.5	10.1	10.5	
14.4	9.4		6.9	9	14.9	-	6.5
NONFER MET 5.6	15.0	6.3	•	<b>N</b>	<b>2°</b> 0	σ	3
100.0 1	100.0	100.0	•	100.0	10~0	100-0	100-0

TABLE A.5 FIXED CAPITAL STOCK IN BRANCHES OF INDUSTRY BY REPUBLIC FOR THE USSR, YEAR-AVERAGE 1966 1

	USSR SUM	RSFSR	UKRAINE	MOLDAV	BELORUS	LATVIA	LITHURN	ESTORIA
	16031	8709.	5998.	•0	•	29.	<b>B</b>	
PERMUS RELATIONS		19051		c	205.	51.	95	151.
FUELS	23110	15292	2838	153.	512.	230.	282.	293.
A LINEWA TOWER	• • • • • •							. 26.
MACH BIDG A METAL VRKNG	29406.	21672.		14.	-17	.02		
	12779.	9317.		•	237.	103°	.01	R
CHEMICAL PRODUCTS	8781	7494		20.	164.	128.	<b>.</b> 6	5
AUCH R FAFET FAULT		<pre>////////////////////////////////////</pre>			218.	110.	144.	91.
5						10	•	č
GLASS & PORCELAIN	<b>8</b> 98.	• 209 •						
TEXTLES & APPAREL	6A32.	4426 •		57.	237.	111.	11/•	R
	14037	8304 -		379.	310.	327.	319.	219.
TUN STATE A MAREE KET	11082	7190		14.	5 m	30.	58.	15.
					ALOR	1021	1 3 9 4	1085.
INDUSTRY TOTAL	150934	1012/0.	20//02	•06/	• 0 4 0 7		• 10/1	
	GEORGIA	ARMENIA	AZERB	KAZAKH	UZBEK	KIRGIZ	TADZHITK	TURKMEN
EFBROUK NETALLURGY	331.	• •	132.	.797	21.	۰. ت	<b>.</b>	ō
		Ċ		878.	355.	154.	26.	- O # O
FUELS RIFC & THEAK DOVER		291.		1216.	608.	144.	197.	114.
WACH BIDG A METAL VOKNG	951.	108		101	414.	115.	58.	- - -
	173	174.		297.	277.	1.	۲.	63.
www a base ponints	Ś	17.		115.	57.	13.	•	ý
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS	040	78.		628 .	310.	76.	83.	70.
A ASS A PARCELAIN	ι Γ	•		•	•	<b>-</b>	1.	•
5 Y	129.	80.		196.	。ちゅう	7.	112.	<b>46.</b>
· <b>x</b>	320.	106.	122.	466.	203.	114.	69	<b>80</b> .
IND N.F.C. + NONFER MET	124 .	169.		1669.	984.	70.	56.	
TOTAL	2220.	1125.		6755.	2980.	765.	604.	762.

. . .

Sugar Section

a de la

و المالية الم

į,

•

-1

I

DEPRECIATION PAYMENTS IN MAJOR BRANCHES OF THE ECONOMY AND BRANCHES OF INDUSTRY BY REPUBLIC FOR THE USSR IN 1966 (MILLIONS OF RUBLES)

The second

[]

-

•

.

57.8 76.7 TURKMEN ESTONIA 000000000 9.99 39.66 LITHURN TADZHIK 65.3 58.1 11.3 255.2 54.8 13.4 6.0 15555555555 LATVIA KIRGIZ 200.00 28.0 137.9 22.6 86.3 466.6 UZBEK BELORUS 193.9 207.7 56.6 57.5 57.5 57.5 57.5 21.4 13.1 13.1 13.1 13.1 109.9 109.9 109.9 109.9 109.9 109.9 109.9 1148.7 65.5 21.4 8.3 470.1 5.0 9.1.6 3.8 0.0 MOLDAV KAZAKH 1969.9 425.9 433.5 139.1 139.1 131.9 131.9 131.9 144.9 199.4 199.4 199.4 199.4 155.7 755.1 1553.3 1553.4 1553.5 15553.5 15555.5 15555.5 AZERB 254.3 UKRAINE 618.4 1048.4 749.3 1647.1 670.8 479.4 455.0 298.5 298.5 606.2 473.5 897.5 1922.9 2320.6 461.5 13027.2 6.4 RSFSR ARMENIA 7424.6 1024.7 729.9 1380.0 3869.6 3556.4 837.5 20877.1 1138.2 1837.3 1837.3 2234.9 920.1 913.3 778.5 45.4 23.5 26.4 26.4 19.1 12.5 12.5 12.5 SEORGIA USSR SUN 11233.6 52.0 INDUSTRY FERROUS METALLURGY FUELS ELEC & THERM POWER MACH BLDG & MET WRKNG CHEMTCAL PRODUCTS CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS ELASS & PORCELAIN FEXTILES & APPAREL FOOD PRODUCTS IND NEC 4 NONFER MET CONSTRUCTION AGRICULTURE TRANSPORT & COMMUNIC TRANSPORT & COMMUNIC TRANSPORT & COMMUNIC FUELS ELEC & THERM POWER MACH BLDG & MET WRKNG CHEMICAL PRODUCTS WOOD & PAPER PRODUCTS CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS GLASS & PORCELAIN TEXTILES & APPAREL AGRICULTURE TRANSPORT & COMMUNIC TRADE & DIST + OTHER BR TOTAL NEC & NONFER MET FERROUS METALLURGY FOOD PROLUCTS CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY **Valsudivi** ONI

### Notes to Tables A.1 and A.2

RSFSR values of capital stock by branch on 1.1.1961, 1.1.1962 and 1.1.1963. (NK RSFSR v 1962 p. 36) growth rates to 1.1.1966 and 1.1.1967 (NK RSFSR v 1967, p. 36) nonproductive branches assumed to grow at annual average rate for 1961-1963 and 1965-1970 periods (growth rates for latter period from NK RSFSR v 1975, p. 27).

Ukraine: see text.

- Moldavia. industrial fixed capital 1.1.1966 see text branch structure 1.1.1966 (NK MSSR v 1970 p. 21) growth rates to 1.1.1967 (NK MSSR v 1970, p. 20).
- Belorussia: fixed capital in 'Agriculture,' 1.1.1966 see text branch structure 1.1.1966 and 1.1.1967 and growth rates for 1966 (Bel SSR za 50 let, 1968, p. 41).
- Latvia: values of capital stock by branch on 1.1.1971; growth rates to this date from 1.1.1966, and branch structure 1.1.1966 (<u>NK La SSR v 1971</u>, p. 44); (growth by branch in 1966 assumed equal to annual average growth rate for 1965-1970 period).
- Lithuania total capital stock on 1.1.1972 and growth to this date from 1.1.1966 (Ekon <u>i</u> Kult Li SSR <u>v</u> 1972, pp. 70-71) growth of total capital stock in 1966 and branch structure on 1.1.1966 and 1.1.1967 (Ekon <u>i</u> Kult Li SSR <u>v</u> 1969, pp. 116, 118).
- Estonia industrial fixed capital on 1.1.1966: see text branch structure on 1.1.1966 and 1.1.1967 and growth in 1966 (NK ESSR v 1969, pp. 44-45).

- 34 -

Georgia: values by branch on 1.1.1966 (Charkviani 1972 p. 150). growth rates by branch in 1966 assumed equal to annual average growth rates for 1960-1965 period (Ibid.).

Armenia: see text.

Azerbaidzhan: industrial fixed capital on 1.1.1966. see text branch structure on 1.1.1966 and 1.1.1967 and growth rates by branch for 1966 (NK Az SSR v 1970, pp. 28-29).

Kazakhstan: values by branch on 1.1.1966 (NK Kazakh v 1971, p. 23; see also text); growth rates by branch in 1966 assumed equal to annual average growth rates for 1966-1971 period (Ibid.).

Uzbekistan: values of capital stock by branch in 1955 prices for revised boundaries on 1.1.1972 and 1.1.1974 and growth rates by branch from 1.1.1966 to each of these dates (<u>NK Uz SSR v</u> <u>1972</u>, p. 21. <u>NK Uz SSR za 50 let</u>, <u>1974</u> p. 51. see also text); growth rates by branch in 1966 assumed unaffected by territory revision (<u>NK Uz SSR v 1967</u>, p. 27).

<u>Kirgizstan</u>: values by branch on 1.1.1966 and 1.1.1967 (<u>Kirgizstan</u> <u>v tsifrakh</u>, <u>1971</u>, p. 14).

Tadzhikistan: industrial fixed capital on 1.1.1966: see text; branch structure on 1.1.1966 (<u>NK Ta SSR v 1965</u>, <u>1966</u>, p. 29): growth rates by branch for 1966 (<u>NK Ta SSR v 1968</u>, p. 23); <u>Turkmenistan</u>: see text.

Appendix B

Average annual employment, monthly wages total wages paid, and social security payments in major branches of the economy and 12 branches of industry by republic for the USSR in 1966. TABLE R.I EMPLOYMENT IN MAJOR REANCHES OF THE ECONOMY BY REPUBLIC FOR THE USSR IN 1966 (THOUSARDS OF EMPLOYEES)

•

	USSR	RSFSR	UKRAINE	MOLDAV	BELORUS	LATVIA	LITHUAN	ESTONIA
TUNUCTRY	28513.1	18628.0	5291.0	199.6	6.148	364.5	\$39.4	213.6
CTTON	7549.7	0.0044	1352.0	74.5	231.6	. 81.0	107.11	40.4
ICT-ASSEMBLY WORK	5870.7	3372.0	1033.0	65.6	195.5	67.0	90.8	39.65
CONSTRUCTION	1679.0	1028.0	319.0	10.9	36.1	14.0	16.5	9.6
TIDE & EDDESTRY	9302.8	5296.0	1195.0	81.6	434.9	95.5	146.4	67.8
TIPE	8804.2	5046.0	1123.0	RILE	410.4	90.5	139.2	60.4
TY A AITY AGD ENT	8407.0	4824.0	1029.0	75.8	368.0	80.0.	131.0	50.0
STATE AGDICIN.	487.2	222.0	0.40	0.0	22.4	10.5	A.2	10.4
	UDR.6	250.0	72.0	8.5	24.5	5.0	7.2	7.4
T & COMMINTC	84.7.0	5140.0	1521.0	77.3	255.1	104.0	90.5	64.4
DTATION	7363-8	0.979.0	1346.0	68.4	215.1	0.06	77.5	55.4
	1073.9	661.0	175.0	0.A	40.0	14.0	13.0	0.9
TOADE & DECTOTOITYON	6261 -D	3715.0	1189.0	68.8	198.3	76.0	73.8	45.9
ATUED BDANCHES	867.0	497.0	157.0	8.1	29.8	13.9	10.6	6.6.
NUMBOOLOTIC DAMCHEC	8-107A1	0-21211	1268.0	205.2	574.1	206.1	219.6	120.8
ECONOMY TOTAL	79709.3	48983.0	13973.0	720.1	2565.7	941.0	967.4	568.7
	GEORGIA	ARMENIA	AZERB	KAZAKH	UZBEK	#1861Z	TADZHTK	TURKMEN
TUNUTRY	Jak.n	216.4	289.5	0-7-06	517.0	162.0	112.7	82.5
NUL TRICTON	LOCEL	78.3	126.1	462.4	255.8	66.7		
ICT-ASSEMBLY WORK	113.7	69.0	88.7	369.0	206.2	55.0		
CONCTRUCTION	19.0	5.9	37.4	93.4	40.6	11.7		
AGEICHITHDE & EDBESTRY	147.0	89.0	153.6	1046.0	367.0	107.9		
ACRICIA TIRE	119.0	86.0	150.6	1029.0	364.0	105.2		
AUX	196-0	78.0	134.0	1008.0	333.0	54.5		
OTHER STATE AGRICUL	13.0	8.0	16.6	21.0	31.0	10.7		
ENRESTRY	8-0	3-0	3.0	17.0	3.0	2.7		
TRANSPORT & COMMINIC	130.0	55.0	125.0	500.4	203.6	65.8		
TDANSPORTATION	113.0	46.0	109.1	0-044	176.4	56.9		
	17-0	0.9	15.9	60.4	27.2	8.9		
DISTRIBUTION	102.0	46.0	85.5	327.0	200.0	54.0		
OTHER BRANCHES	8.0	10.2	13.5	54.2	28.8	9.6		
NONPRODUCTIVE RRANCHES	322.4	175.1	305.0	935.2	620.A	181.0		
						547.0		

1

I

I

I

Ţ

Π

[]

Π

Π

Π

Π

I

I

TABLE 8.2 EMPLOYMENT IN BRANCHES OF INDUSTRY BY REPUBLIC FOR THE USSR IN 1966 (THOUSANDS OF EMPLOYEES)

Mary Mary

Statistics and statistics

1

----

1

•

I

Ż

	USSR	RSFSR	UKRAINE	MOLDAV	BELORUS	LATVIA	LITHUAN	ESTONIA
METALLURGY	1937.0	1205.5	498.8	0.	2.5	4.2	1.0	0.
FERROUS METALLURGY	1267.0	714.3	466.8	0.			۰	0.
NONFERROUS METALLURGY	670.0	2.194	32.0	0.	•	•	•	•
FUELS	1579.0	781.7	605.6	0.	18.7	3.9		•
ELEC & THERM PONER	581.0	9+7.6	06	-	17.3	5.2		•
MACH BLDG & MET WRKNG	10398.0	7300.0	a		290.0	123.5		•
CHEMICAL PRODUCTS	1346.0	0.049.0	214		29.0	đ.	3	
WOOD & PAPER	2839.0	2192.3	00		101.2	C,		•
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS	1775.0	1020.7	371.0	-	57.7	17.7		•
ASS & PORCELAIN	252.0	158.7	5	-	14.5	5.0	٠	Ň
TEXTLES & APPAREL	4492.0	2757-6	5		164.1	79.2		ċ
FOOD PRODUCTS	2680.0	1523.9	65		95.4	ЧÇ.	•	•
INDUSTRY N.E.C.	634.1	391.0	106.4	7.0	31.5	-		
INDUSTRY TOTAL	28513-1	18628.0	16	•		at -	٠	213.6
	GEORGIA	ARMENIA	AZERB	KAZAKH	UZBEK	K IRGIZ	TADZHIK	TURKMEN
METALLURGY	27.9	50 e 10	16.0	137.7	24.6	6. ð	3.7	0.
FERROUS METALLURGY	24.1	•	10.7		2.9.	•	•	0.
NONFERROUS WETALLURGY	3.8	8.0	5.0	•	21.7	<b>6.3</b>	3.7	0.
FUELS	<b>6</b> •6	•	42.1	•	11.3	10.4	2.7	۰
ELEC & THERM PONER	9.2	5.1	1.2		17.1		٠	٠
MACH BLDG & MET WRKNG	70.2	<b>69.4</b>	66.1	•	153.6		٠	٠
CHEMICAL PRODUCTS	25.7	20.6	16.2		18.7		•	٠
WOOD & PAPER	21.3	7.1	10.7		17.8			۰
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS	28.5	20.3	17.4		49.8	14.1	•	_ •
GLASS & PORCELAIN	2.0	1.2	2.4		2.2	<b>n</b> •	<b>.</b>	
TEXTILES & APPAREL	84.5	58.1	70.7	47.	150.0		•	••
FOOD PRODUCTS	55.8	20.6	28.8	111.0	S	21.1	15.1	10.6
INDUSTRY N.E.C.	13.0	5.7	8.0			•	٠	۲
INDUSTRY TOTAL	0.845	216.4	284°5		517.0	162.0		

A star and a star and a star and

TARLE R.J AVERAGE MONTHLY WAGES IN MAJOR BRANCHES OF THE ECONOMY BY REPURLIC FOR THE USSR IN 1966 (RUBLES)

	USSR	RSFSR	UKRAINE	MOLDAV	RELORUS	LATVIA	LITHUAN	ESTONIA
INDUSTRY	107.8	109.1	109.1	85.9	90.8	105.9	101.8	112.1
CONSTRUCTION	116.2	119.2	106.2	80.2	0.06	115.9	110.3	124.3
CONSTRUCT-ASSEMBLY WORK	116.7	119.7	107.1	89.0	100.2	117.8	11166	127.3
OTHER CONSTRUCTION	114.3	117.6	103.3	90°4	92.5	107.3	102.6	112.2
AGRICULTURE & FORESTRY	R0.3	81.5	75.5	5.8.5	58.9	73.8	66.0	84.7
	80.4	81.5	75.6	58.4	58.3	73.8	66.1	84.8
SOVKHOZY & AUX AGR ENT	80.08	81.2	74.5	67.0	57.0	73.3	64:7	84.2
OTHER STATE AGRICUL	87.8	88.5	87.8	80.69	80.8	77.6	87.8	87.8
FORESTRY	78.0	81.2	74.5	6.48	68.3	73.3	64.7	84.0
TRANSPORT & COMMUNIC	106.1	110.5	96.0	91.0	92.4	109.0	100.9	109.8
2	110.5	115.3	2.99	93.5	96.4	114.4	105.4	115.2
COMMUNICATION	75.8	78.0	71.5	71.4	71.2	74.4	73.8	76.7
TRADE & DISTRIBUTION	1.61	81.8	74.8	76.8	76.6	85.0	81.5	89.3
OTHER BRANCHES	150.7	168.3	122.1	L.#11.	121.3	130.4	122.2	168.7
NONPRODUCTIVE BRANCHES	0.40	96.6	87.5	87.4	88.8	93.0	93.2	95.2
ECONOMY TOTAL	100.2	102.8	96.7	84.6	85.1	4.99.7	1.40	104.9
	GEOPGIA	ARMENTA	AZERB	KAZAKH	UZBEK	KIR612	TANZHIK	TURKMEN
INDUSTRY	4.79	104.8	98.5	112.5	97.5	102.4	96.5	104-0
CONSTRUCTION	115.4	124.0	119.6	122.0	121.5	111.9	120.4	137.7
TRUCT-ASSEMBLY WORK	115.2	125.4	115.3	123.3	122.7	113.4	121.0	132.4
OTHER CONSTRUCTION	116.7	113.4	129.8	116.7	116.7	105.2	116.7	156.1
ULTURE & FORESTRY	66.2	64.5	6.49	100.2	74.6	72.6	76.9	92.6
CULTURE	66.0	64.6	6.49	100.5	74.7	72.5	76:9	92.6
KHOZY & AUX AGR ENT	64.3	62.3	62.9	100.8	72.7	7.07	74:6	92.1
ER STATE AGRICUL	82.4	86.5	81.2	87.8	92.6	88.6	87.8	92.3
FORESTRY	1.69	62.3	65.9	78.0	72.7	77.2	74.6	92.7
TRANSPORT & COMMUNIC	89.1	0°86	91.6	108.8	103.3	5.99	105.8	116.6
Z	91.8	102.6	101.3	113.8	104.2	103.2	110.5	121.6
NICATION	6.07	74.2	72.4	72.1	71.6	73.9	75:6	83.3
TRADE & DISTRIBUTION	73.2	77.8	72.5	78.2	77.2	77.6	83.5	R3.5
OTHER BRANCHES	213.6	117.5	126.5	148.8	119.2	83.9	141.6	-96
NONPRODUCTIVE BRANCHES	88.8	7.79	4.46	91.0	92.7	92.5	9A.7	97.8
ECONOMY TOTAL	91.0	97.6	93.3	103.1	94.1	93.0	£*66	106.0

Laure from the second from the

harder

I

I

I

T

0

TABLE B.4 AVERAGE MONTHLY WAGES IN BRANCHES OF INDUSTRY BY REPUBLIC FOR THE USSR IN 1966 (RUBLES)

I

Į

and the second secon

The second s

į

۰.

	USSR	RSFSR	UKRAINE	MOLDAV	BELORUS	LATVIA	LITHUAN	ESTONIA
METALLURGY	142.3	- 31	<b>N</b>		5	5	38.	0.
FFROUS METALLURGY	139.8	•	-	0.	130.8	1.501		0.
MONFERROUS METALLURGY	164.0	5	17.	•	•	••	٠	٠
	174.6	81	77.	<b>c</b> .	•	<b>.</b>	6	21.
FIFC A THERM PONER	112-2	12	12.	02•	03.	Ľ	11.	22.
MACH RLDG A MET WRKNG	107.5	S	04.	01.	۰	10	<b>8</b> 4.	16.
CHEMICAL PRODUCTS	111.4	5	01.		11.	<b>.</b>	~	
WOOD & PAPER	104.9	30	16.	85.		00	. 16	07.
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS	105.4	5	02.	*	۰	6	05.	15.
GLASS & PORCELAIN	<b>68 •</b> 2	5	96.	5	٠	5	è.	17.
	<b>86 .</b> 5	- CV		-	÷.	92	87.	97.
EDOD PRODUCTS	+ - 26	- 60	5		é	1	000	
INDUSTRY N.E.C.	1.10	9		~	•	a 6	-	99.
INDUSTRY TOTAL	107.8	109.1	109.1	85.9	9.06	105.9	<b>C</b>	112.1
	GFORIIA	ARMENIA	AZERB	KAZAKH	UZBEK	KIRGIZ	TADZHIK	TURKMEN
METALLURGY	13:.9		39.	54.	32.	133.1	136.7	0.
FERROUS METALLURGY	136.8	137.9	130.8	130.8	130.8	-		0.
NONFERROUS METALLURGY	153 9		56.	64.	33.	-	36.	•
FUELS	F-621		.80	74.	35.	5	47.	52.
ELEC & THERM POVER	105.1		06.	13.	11.	00.	13.	17.
MACH BLDG & MET WRKNG	98.		00.	08.	.90		109.8	113.8
CHEMICAL PRODUCTS	104.6		96.	12.	•60	00	12.	17.
WOOD & PAPER	96.5		98.	99.	ŝ			03.
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS	114.8			-				16.
GLASS & PORCELAIN	50.5		-	•	ŝ			02.
	9.08		-	<sup>°</sup>	0		•	•
FOOD PRODUCTS	82.7		-	°.			•	
INDUSTRY N.E.C.	86.1				~		۰	•
INDUSTRY TOTAL	97.0			ŝ	97.		•	٠

TOTAL WAGE PAYWENTS IN MAJOR REANCHES OF THE ECONOMY BY REPUBLIC FOR THE USSR IN 1966 (MILLIONS OF RUBLES)

I

I

I

T

[]

[]

[]

Ω

[]

Π

[]

 $\Pi$ 

[]

1

1

Autor at the

燕

	USSR	<b>RSFSR</b>	UKRAINE	MOLDAV	<b>3ELORUS</b>	LATVIA	LITHUAN	ESTCNIA
	TAROL S	24.787.8	692750	205.7	917.3	463.2	414.6	287.3
INCOUNT	* *****	0 10113	121.0	81.0	275.1	112.7	141.8	73.7
CONSTRUCTION	E 1000	04233.0	9.70F	70.1	235.1	94.7	121.6	60.8
CONSTRUCT ASSEMBLT HURA	0 0020		A ROF	8.11	40.1	18.0	20.1	12.9
OTHER CONSTRUCTION	2.2022	0 04 3	F.FAC.		307.2	84.5	115.9	68.9
AGRICULIURE & FURESTAT				56.4	287.1	80.1	110.3	61.5
ų e			0.0101	50.9	265.4	70.4	101.7	50.5
SUVEHOLT & AUX AGK EN			4 00 V	4.8	21.14	9.8	8:6	11.0
TALE	C.CIC	0.00			t uc	4.4	5.6	7.5
FORESTRY	382.4	9"th2				1 TYPE	109.5	84.9
TRANSPORT & COMMUNIC	10/40.6	6'6189	1752.4	4. 40	0.002			74.4
TRANSPORTATION	9764.4	6197.4	1602.3	7.91	248.8	123.6	0.05	
COMMINTCATTON	6-946	618.7	150.1	7.6	34.2	12.5	11.5	
TOTAL A RECTORALITY	SQOR. O	3646.6	6.7.204	63.4	162.3	77.5	72.2	49.2
TRAFT & DISTABULTON		003	0.050	1.11.	43.64	21.7	15.5	13.8
UHER BRANCIES	0		1	0.316	611.8	230.0	245.6	138.0
NONPRODUCTIVE BRANCHES	2.14112	- STTOT	** 10:50			9135.0	1115.0	715.9
ECONOMY TOTAL	95842.5	\$0422°4	16214.5	n.1c/	20501	0.02+1		
•					A30211	10617	TADZHTK	TURKMEN.
•	BEORGIA	ARMENIA	A. ERB	LACAN	19070	340444		2
TurileTBV	4.604	1.676		1224.4	604.9	199.1	130.5	103.0
THICOUNT	0 201	11.11	•	677.0	373.0	89.6	S? #6	106.9
CONSTRUCTION				546.0	3.505	74.8	79.9	80.1
CONSTRUCT-ASSEMBLT WORK	2.101	0.001			80.6	14.8	14.6	26.8
OTHER CONSTRUCTION	56.6	12.7			1001	1.40	0.01	32.9
	110.1	6.00				1.10	1.81	31.8
AGRICULTURE	110.1	60.6		1.1.1.4	1.020	0.44	A OF	0.76
SOVKHOZY & AUX AGP ENT	97.2	58.3		1219.3	C.042	N.00		1.0
OTHER STATE AGRICUL	12.9	8.3		22.1	0.00	***	:	::
FORESTRY	6.6	2.2		15.9	5.6	<b>S</b> .		;;
TOANCDOPT & COMMINTC	138.9	64.6		653.1	252.4	76.4	64.6	5.5
TDANSPORTATION	104.5	56.6		600.3	229.0	70.5	5.8.3	00
COMMENTCATION	14.5	8.0		52.3	23.4	7.9	6.3	
TRADE A DISTRIBUTION	89.68	42.9		306.9	185.3	50.3	8.04	34.3
OTLER ROANCHES	8.00	14.41		96.8	41.2	1.6	12.1	6.6
NONPODICTIVE BRANCHES	#n7.5	205.3		1021.2	690.6	200.9	180.5	150.6
ECONOMY TOTAL	1366.1	784.7	1229.5	5236.1	2476.3	722.1	562.1	1.812
		Contraction of the second second						

and the second second

l

I

ļ

1. A.S.

The second s

٦

Ĺ

Į

, 1

## TABLE B.6 Total wage payments in branches of industry by republic for the USSR in 1966 (millions of rubles)

	USSR	RSFSR	UKRAINE	MOLDAV	BELORUS	LATVIA	LITHUAN	ESTONIA
METALLURGY	3307.2	- 97	25	0.	•	7.0	•	0.
FERROUS METALLURGY	1988.7	1172.7	680.6	•	3.9	7.0	1.7	0
NONFERROUS METALLURGY	1318.6	995.4	45.1	•	•	••	٠	•
FUELS	3308.3	1705.9	88	•		•	٠	•
LLEC & THERM PONER	782.3	469+8	121			7.2		۰
MACH BLDG & MET WRKNG	13425.9	9530.8	88				۰	
CHEMICAL PRODUCTS		1295.1	261.7	9°E		ц. Ц	16.4	6.1
WOOD & PAPER	3573.7	2756.6	20	=		59.6	•	
LONSTRUCTION MATERIALS	2245.0	1289.8	56			•	٠	
GLASS & PORCELAIN	290.9	181.7	66.0	~			•	
TEXTILES & APPAREL	1.5444	2734.9	26	•			•	•
FOOD PRODUCTS	3003.7	1798.5	99		88.		•	
INDUSTRY N.E.C.	701.0	454.6	03	•	•		٠	10.0
INDUSTRY TOTAL	36884 . 5	24387.0	6927.0				•	-
	GEORGIA	ARMENIA	AZERB	KAZAKH	UZBEK	K IRGIZ	TADZHIK	<b>HORKMEN</b>
METALLURGY	8 • † †	17.1			39.2	10.9	6.1	0.
FERROUS METALLURGY	37.8	•		63.		٠	0.	•
NONFERROUS METALLURGY	7.0	15.6		91.	•	•	٠	0.
FUELS	16.6		•	•			٠	٠
ELEC & THERM PONER	11.6	7.2	٠		٠	6.6	٠	-
MACH BLDG & MET WRKNG	83.3		٠				25.3	۰
CHEMICAL PRODUCTS	32.3	29.0			۰		۲	٠
NOOD & PAPER	24.7					7.7	٠	
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS	99.3				۰		٠	٠
GLASS & PORCELAIN	2.2	1.5	•		•	<b>n</b>	٠	-
TEXTILES & APPAREL	81.5	•	•	45.			٠	۰
FOOD PRODUCTS	55.4	22.1	29.0	110.2	53.3	21.4	. 15.1	11.0
INDUSTRY N.E.C.	13.4	•			•	•	m	Ň
INDUSTRY TOTAL	405.1	272.1	342.2		÷	199.1		•

TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY PAYMENTS IN MAJOR BRANCHES OF THE ECONOMY By Republic for the USSR in 1946 (millions of Ruples)

•

1

ł

- Name and a sure

**~ ~** 

-----

IIA				<b>-</b>	8.					<b>0</b>	5	5.5	<b>1</b>		; ;	2.0	¢,	7.6		N	1	N	6.5	4.9	9	4-1				9	0.4	3.6	4	8	-		29.A
ESTONIA	9	ř 4	97 (	77		<b>.</b>		v C	v			đ		r		4		r	2	TURKMEN			Ų	4	Ţ			•	•		4	4)			,	~	8
LITHUAN	F Q C				1.2	5	0.4		5 5		~	5.5				2.0	6	13.5	53	TADZHTK	1	0.0	5.8	<b>6.4</b>	67	1.7	5.7	1. 1				341	•	1.8	<b>L</b> .	6.6	32.3
LATVIA			0 1 0 1		1.1	5-7			1.0	<b>a</b>	\$	7.2	6.5		- 1		1.2	12.7	66.9	KIR61Z	1	5° = 1	5.5	\$.\$	6.	<b>4.1</b>	C. 4	нс. 10	5		4 - 5	3.7	4.	2.5	۹Ċ ۲	11.1	41.9
RELAPUS	6-29			C • # T	2.4	13.5	12.6		~ • • •	1.0	6	10.0	13.2				2.4	33.6	152.7	UZBEK			22.8	18-5	t: ->	14.5	n•+1	12.8	1.6	-	13.4	12.1	1.2	8.3	2.3	38.0	142.0
MOLDAV	13.0				<b>L</b> .	0.0	5.5	0	. :	•	₩: •	4.5	4.1	4			¢.	11.8	41.7	KAZĄKH				53.5	8.0	55.3	54.6	53.6	2.0		34.6	31.8	2.8	15.8	10°10	56.2	295.9
UKRAINE	516.0	105.1			24.1	47.7	8.44	40.5	1		8 • N	92.9	84.9	8.0	48.0		12.1	184.7	1011.1	AZERB	. 30		11.0	7.5	3.6	n N	5.2	4.5	۲.		7.8	7.0		3.5	1.1	19.0	72.6
RSFSR	1745.8	383.0	201			221.9	217.2	206.A	16.4		10.7	361.2	328.4	32.8	164.1	-		721.5	3658.6	ARMENTA	4.01			6.3	80	3.0	2.9	2,6	4,	.1	4 B)	0.0	<b>*</b> °	.1.9	<b>6</b> 0	11.3	47.0
USSR	2654.5	642.2	501.5	2 0 1 1		0.400	377.7	355.1	22.6			0.490	517.5	51.7	269.5	0 10		1165.A	5780.7	GEORGIA	28.5		2.11	9.6	9.1	5.1	<b>6.</b> 4	<b>N</b> • 4	9.	<b>ř</b> .	7.4	6.6	<b>e</b> .	0.4	£•1	22.4	79.9
	INDUSTRY	CONSTRUCTION	CONSTRUCT-ASSEMBLY WORK			ADRACULICAE & FURENIAL	AGKICUL INRE	SUVKHOZY & AUX AGP ENT	OTHER STATE AGRICUL	EARESTBY	TO-NCDADT & FOLUTION			COMMUNICATION	TRADE & DISTRIBUTION	OTHER PRANCHES			LAUNDAT 101AL		INDUSTRY	CONSTRUCTION						SVARHUZY & AUX AGR ENT	UTHER STATE AGRICUL	PONESTAT				INAUE & DISIRIBUTION		NONTRODUCTIVE RIANCHES	ECONOMY TOTAL

an interior

×.

	• •
	à.
1.5	1.10
1	

;

ì

Party Street and a second street and

Contraction of the local division of the loc

÷,

# TABLE B.8 Total Social Security Payments in Branches of Industry By Kepublic for the USSR in 1966 (Millions of Rubles)

	USSR	KSFSR	UKRAINE	MOLDAV	BELORUS	LATVIA	LITHUAN	ESTONIA
	261.3	171.4	57.3	0.	£.	9.	.1	0.
FERROUS METALLURGY	157.1	95.6	53.8	0.	m.	9.	•	0.
NONFERROUS METALLURGY	104.2	7.87	3.6	0.	••	••	<b>.</b>	•
	294.4	151.8	114.7	0.	1.8	± 1	ŝ	2.3
ELEC & THERM POWER	51.6	0.10	8.0	÷.	1.4	ŝ	9.	•
MACH BLDG & MET WRKNG	1033.8	733.9	176.2	4.0	27.5	12.6	٠	5.2
CHEMICAL PRODUCTS	151.1	108.8	22.0	۳) •	5.5	<ul><li>N</li></ul>	1.4	<b>н</b> о •
WOOD & PAPER	168.0	129.6	19.8		4.9	2.8		•
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS	136.9	7.8.7	27.8	1.4	0 • <del>1</del>	1.1	٠	1.1
<b>B</b> PORCELAIN	17.7	1.1.1	0.4	•1	1.0	<b>=</b> .		e.
TEXTILES & APPAREL	302.4	185.0	42.6	す・ち	11.6	6.0		٠
FOOD PRODUCTS	204.3	122.3	38.7		Ŷ	t.t	ୟ" <b>ଅ</b>	ち
INDUSTRY N.E.C.	32.9	•	<b>6</b> • <b>†</b>	•	1.4	\$	<b>.</b>	н <u>с</u>
INDUSTRY TOTAL	2654.5		516.0	13.9	63.2	31.8	28.3	19.8
	GEORGIA	ARMENIA	AZERB	KAZAKH	UZBEK	k irgiz	TADZHIK	TURKMEN
	3.5	1.4	2.1	20.1	3.1	6.	•5	0.
FERROUS METALLURGY	3.0	•	1.3	5.0	÷,	•	0.	•
NONFERROUS METALLURGY	9.	1.3	8.	15.2	2.7	6.	ະ	•
	1.5	0.	<b>6</b> • <b>†</b>	11.9	1.6	1.7	÷.	6.
THERM POWER	8.	5.	8.	り・コ	1.5	÷	۳. •	н <b>р</b> •
MACH BLDG & MET WRKNG	6.4	6.9	٠	21.4	15.2	5.0	1.9	4 • 1
CHEMICAL PRODUCTS	2.7	2.4	1.9	2.7	2.1	~	2.	10 •
	1.2	• •	<b>9</b>	2.7	1.0	<b>*</b> .	۳ <b>.</b>	Ņ
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS	2.4	1.8	1.5	•	<b>6</b> •0	1.2	6•	€.
A PORCELAIN			~	•	~	•	•	
TEXTLLES & APPAREL	5.5	٠	4.7	•	6.6	٠	•	1.9
FOOD PRODUCTS	3.8	1.5	•	7.5	3.6	1.5	. <b>1.0</b>	
	<b>9</b>	<del>ا</del> ئ ا	4.	۲.	.8	2	4	
INDUSTRY TOTAL	28.5	19.4	25.1	40.44	42.8	24.3	0.6	7.2

TOTAL ENPLOYNENT IN AGRICULTURE BY REFUBLIC FOR THE USSR IN 1966 (THOUSANDS OF ENPLOYEES)

ļ

----

•

. .

÷.,

	AGRICLLTURE TOTAL	SOVKHOZY B Aux Agr Frt	CTHER STATE AGPICULTURE	KOLKHOZY	PRIVATE Agriculture
RSFSR	15063.0	4824.0	222.0	7197.0	2820.0
LKRAINE	A545.0	1029.0	0.40	5982.0	1430-0
VCLDAVIA	859.8	75.8	5.0	691.0	P.8.0
PELORUSSIA	1.919.4	3A6.0	22.4	1132.0	397.0
I ATVIA	364 • 5	PO.04	10.5	179.0	A5.0
LITHUANIA	675.2	131.0	8.2	326.0	170.0
FSTONIA	171.4	50.0	10.4	70.0	41.0
GECRGIA	741.0	126.0	13.0	0.144	161.0
ARVENIA	252 . 0	78.0	8.0	119.0	47.0
AZERBAIDZHAN	5-0-6	134.0	16.6	316.0	124.0
KAZAKHSTAN	1618.0	1008.0	21.0	296.0	293.0
LZEEKISTAN	1548.0	333.0	1.1.0	992.0	202.0
K IRGIZSTAN	342.2	94.5	10.7	217.0	€0°0
TACZHIKISTAN	4 85 .5	34.2	5.2	379.0	65.0
TURKVENISTAN	2P6.6	21.5	7.1	221.0	37.0
USSR	33372.2	8407.0	427.2	18458.O	6020.0

Notes to Table B.1

all citations to 1966 new classification data unless otherwise noted.

RSFSR: NK RSFSR v 1968, p. 326.

Ukraine: NH Uk RSR v 1968, p. 413.

Moldavia: NK MSSR, 1971, pp. 161-162.

Belorussia: NK BSSR v 1970, pp. 227-228.

Latvia 1965 and 1966 old classification, Trud, p. 61

1965 new classification, La SSR v tsifrakh v 1968, p. 285.

Lithuania Ekon i kult Li SSR v 1970, pp. 266-267.

Estonia: NK ESSR v 1968, p. 162.

Georgia 1965 and 1966 old classification Trud, p. 53.

1965 new classification 50 let Sov. Gruzii, 1971, p. 219.

Armenia: Trud Armianskoi SSR 1970 p. 23.

Azerbaidzhan Azerb SSR v tsifrakh v 1968, p. 72.

Kazakhstan, 1965 and 1966 old classification and old boundaries, Trud, p. 51.

1965 new classification and new boundaries, <u>NK Ka SSR v 1971</u>, pp. 236-237.

Uzbekistan 1965 and 1966 old boundaries and new classification, NK Uz SSR v 1969, p. 211.

1965 new classification and new boundaries <u>NK Uz SSP v 1971</u>. p. 223.

<u>Kirgizstan</u>: 1965 and 1966 old classification, <u>Trud</u>, p. 63.
1965 new classification, <u>NK Ki SSR v 1972</u>, pp. 149-150.
<u>Tadzhikistan</u>: <u>NK Ta SSR v 1969</u>, p. 161.
<u>Turkmenistan</u>: 1965 and 1966 old classification <u>Trud</u>, p. 69.

1965 new classification Turk za 50 let. 1974, p. 128.

Notes to Table B.2

RSFSR initial estimates (except Monferrous Metallury, ' 'Power ' and 'Glass and Porcelain') from

1965 old classification rabochii, Trud p. 91.

1965 new classification total employment <u>NK RSFSR v 1972 p. 79.</u> 1965 new classification <u>rabochii</u>, <u>NK RSFSR v 1969 p. 47.</u> The use of 1965 ratios of number of <u>rabochii</u> to total employment

apparently results in underestimation of total employment for some branches in 1966 since for the USSR as a whole the ratio of <u>rabochii</u> to total employment declined slightly from 1965 to 1966 (in particular for 'Machine Building and Metal Working," 'Wood and Paper ' and 'Construction Materials'). The initial estimates for these branches were increased by the amount of the residual remaining (USSR total less the sum of republics) after employment in all other republics had been estimated.

'Nonferrous Metallurgy': calculated as a residual after employment in all other republics had been estimated. USSR employment in 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' estimated from published čapital/ labor ratio (Pervushin, 1970, p. 313) and estimated capital stock in 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' in 1966 USSR input-output table. 'Power': from 1965 employment (Trud, p. 91) and estimated employ-

ment growth in 1966.

'Glass and Porcelain': see text.

<u>Ukraine</u>: 1966 new classification total employment, <u>NH UkRSR v 1968</u>, p. 93.

excepts. 'Nonferrous Metallurgy,' 'Power,' and 'Chemical Products' employment in 1970 estimated from shares of industrial employment (V. A. Popovkin, 1975, p. 131). Growth rates of total

- 47 ...

employment 190/1966 estimated from NH UkPSR v 1970, pp. 70, 104,

115-116. (Industry average growth used for 'Nonferrous Metallurgy.') 'Ferrous Metallurgy,' and 'Fuels'. <u>Trud</u>, p. 93.

'Glass and Porcelain': see above.

<u>Moldavia</u>: 1966 new classification total employment, <u>NK MSSR</u>, <u>1969</u>, p. 43 <u>Belorussia</u>: 1965 new classification <u>rabochii</u>, <u>NK BSSR v 1971</u>, p. 41. 1965 new classification total employment, <u>NK BSSR v 1971</u>, p. 41. 1966 new classification <u>rabochii</u>, NK BSSR v 1968, p. 75.

except: 'Ferrous Metallurgy' and 'Chemical Products' employment in 1965 estimated from shares of industrial employment (Nekrasov, 1976, p. 271). Growth of employment in 1966 estimated from <u>NK BSSR v 1968</u>, pp. 47, 77. (Industry average used for 'Ferrous Metallurgy.')

'Glass and Porcelain': see text.

Latvia: 1969 new classification total employment, La SSR v tsifrakh v 1969, pp. 69, 90-91 (from percentage breakdown and published total).

estimated growth of employment from 1966 to 1969: <u>Ibid</u>. pp. 81-82, 100-101.

Lithuania: 1966 new classification total employment <u>Ekon i kult Li</u> <u>SSR v 1970</u>, p. 100.

except: 'Chemical Products,' Promyshlennost' Litovskoi SSR, 1973, p. 129.

Estonia: 1968 new classification (?), total employment, A. B. Margolin, 1970, p. 13 (from percentage breakdown and published total). Growth of number of workers 1966 to 1968, <u>NK ESSR v 1969</u>, p. 73.

except: 'Chemical Products' from share in total employment in 1965 (D. M. Pinkhenson, 1970, p. 118) and growth of employment in 1966 from <u>MK ESSR v 1969</u>, p. 73.

1965 old classification total employment, Trud, p. 101.

1965 new classification total employment, <u>50 let Sovetskoi Gruzii</u>,

1971, p. 94.

1966 old classification total employment, <u>Trud</u>, p. 101. except: 'Chemical Products' from 1965 employment (50 let Sovetskoi

Gruzii, 1971, p. 94) and estimated employment growth in 1966.
'Nonferrous Metallurgy': For the Transcaucases economic region, employment in 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' was 2.4 % of total industrial employment in 1970 (A. A. Adamesku, 1973, p. 83). 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' employment in 1966 was estimated on the assumption that it accounted for 2% of industrial employment. Estimated employment for the sectors in Azerbaidzhan (see below) was subtracted, and the remaining amount was allocated to Georgia and Armenia proportionally to their relative shares of gross output of 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' in 1966 based on estimates from 1966 input-output data.
Armenia: 1966 new classification total employment, <u>NK Ar S6R y 1968</u>, p. 49.

Metallurgy' for Georgia above.

'Chemical Products': residual, USSR less sum of republics. Azerbaidzhan: 1966 new classification total employment, <u>NK Az SSR v</u> <u>1970</u>, p. 44.

except: 'Chemical Products' and 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' number of <u>rabochii</u> in 1965 from shares of industrial total (Pinkhensen, 1970, p. 120). 'Chemical Products' employment calculated from estimated employment growth in 1556 and USSR ratio of <u>rabochii</u> to total employment. 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' total employment calculated from industry average growth of employment in 1966 for Azerbaidshan and USSR ratio of <u>rabochii</u> to total employment in 'Ferrous Metallurgy.'

- Kazakhstan: 1970 new classification total employment, Checheleva, 1974, p. 68 (from percentage breakdown of published total employment after the gain of territory from Uzbekistan). Rates of employment growth 1966 to 1970 were estimated from <u>NK Ka SSR v</u> <u>1972</u>, pp. 86, 90, 93-98, 101-103, 109, 126 and <u>NK Ka SSR v 1968</u>, pp. 20-21, 29-30.
- except: 'Nonferrous metallurgy,' number of <u>rabochii</u> in 1966 estimated from the quantity of electrical power consumed in 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' and the ratio of electric power consumption per worker (Baimuratov, 1973, pp. 14-15). Total employment estimated using Kazakhstan ratio of <u>rabochii</u> to total employment in 'Ferrous Metallurgy' in 1966.

Uzbekistan: 1965 and 1966 new classification total employment according to old boundaries, NK Uz SSR v 1969, p. 44.

1965 new classification total employment according to new boundaries, <u>NK Uz SSR v 1971</u>, p. 46.

except: 'Glass and Porcelain' and 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' from employment in 1965 (<u>NK Uz SSR v 1971</u>, p. 46) and Uzbekistan industry average growth of employment in 1966.

<u>Kirgizstan</u>: 1965 and 1966 old classification total employment, <u>Trud</u>, p. 111.

1965 new classification total employment, <u>Kirgizstan za gody Sovetskoi</u> vlasti, 1970, p. 102.

except: 'Nonferrous Metallurgy': Total employment in 'Metallurgy' in the Central Asian region in 1965 was 4.0% of industrial employment in the region (Pinkhenson, 1970, p. 125). This percentage was

applied to the total employment of the four republics in 1966 to estimate employment in 'Netallurgy.' Employment in 'Metallurgy' in Uzbekistan subtracted from this Value gives an estimate of the combined employment in 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' in Kirgizstan and Tadzhikistan. (Employment in all 'Metallurgy' in Turkmenistan and in 'Ferrous Metallurgy' in Kirgizstan and Tadzhikistan was assumed to be negligible.) This combined employment figure was distributed to the two republics proportionally to the gross output of 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' in each republic in 1966 based on data from their input-output tables.

<sup>1</sup>Chemical Products<sup>1</sup>: Employment in 'Chemical Products' for both Kirgizstan and Tadzhikistan was estimated on the assumption that the labor/ output ratio was the same for each of these republics as for Turkmenistan in 1966 (based on gross output data from input-output tables).
<sup>1</sup>Glass and Porcelain<sup>1</sup>: Employment in 'Glass and Porcelain' in the Central Asian region was 0.5% of industrial employment in the region in 1965 (Pinkhenson, 1970, p. 125). This percentage was applied to industrial employment for the region in 1966, and the estimates of employment in 'Glass and Porcelain' in the other three Central Asian republics were subtracted.

<u>Tadzhikistan</u><sup>•</sup> 1965 and 1966 old classification total employment. <u>Trud</u>, p. 113.

1965 new classification total employment <u>NK Ta SSR v 1972</u>, pp. 62-63. except 'Nonferrous Metallurgy' and 'Chemical Products.' see Kirgizstan. 'Glass and Porcelain' accounted for 0.33% of industrial employment

in 1967 (Tadzhikistan: ekonomicheskii rost i effektivnost', 1972 -

p. 28). This percentage was used to estimate employment in 1966. <u>Turkmenistan</u> 1965 and 1966 old classification total employment, <u>Trud</u>,

~ 51 -

p. 117

÷

• •

. .

• •

1965 new classification total employment, <u>NK Tu SSR v 1974</u>, p. 43. except: 'Fuels' and 'Chemical Products,' shares of

employment in 1965 (<u>NK Tu SSR v 1974</u>, p. 43) applied to 1966 industry total.

Notes to Table B.3

hll citations for 1966 wages unless otherwise noted.

BSFSR: NK RSFSR v 1968, p. 329.

Ukraine: NH UkRSR v 1968, p. 420.

Moldavia: NK MSSR, 1971, p. 166-167.

Belorussia: NK BSSR v 1970, p. 230.

Latvia: Lat SSR v tsifrakh v 1968, p. 313.

Lithuania: Ekon i kult Li SSR v 1970, pp. 271-272.

Estonia: NK ESSR v 1968, p. 165.

<u>Georgia:</u> <u>NK GSSR v 1967</u>, p. 208 (old classification: adjusted slightly using ratio of new:old classification wages for 1967 new classification wages: <u>Sov gruz po Lenin. puti</u>, <u>1970</u>, p. 121).

Armenia: Trud v Armianskoi SSR, 1970, pp. 72-73.

Azerbaidzhan: NK Az SSR v 1970, p. 226.

Kazakhstan: derived from residual wage payments for the USSR as a whole see text: 1966 economy average wage NK Ka SSR v 1971, p. 242.

Uzbekistan: NK Uz SSR v 1969, p. 214 (old boundaries; adjusted slightly

for boundary change using ratio of new:old boundary wages for 1965;

new boundary wages: NK Uz SSR v 1971, p. 227).

<u>Kirgizstan</u> NK <u>Ki SSR v 1972</u>, pp. 153-154 (1965 wages relative to 1965 USSR wages applied to 1966 USSR wages: see text).

Tadzhikistan: NK Ta SSR v 1969, p. 188.

= 4. WI = 17.1

Turkmenisten: Turkmen za 50 let, 1974, pp. 130-131 (1965 wages relative

to 1965 USSR wages applied to 1966 USSR wages; see text). USSR: NK SSSR v 1966, pp. 555-556.

### Notes to Table B.4

USSR: average wages calculated from <u>Vestnik statistiki</u>, 1971, No. 4, pp. 87-88:

except: 'Nonferrous Metallurgy:' Kostinkov, 1976, p. 67. 'Fuels': calculated as a weighted average of estimated wages in individual sectors: 'Coal' from <u>Vestnik statistiki</u>, 1971, No. 4, pp. 87-38: other sectors: employment from <u>Rapawy</u>, 1976, p. 31: wages from coefficients of relative wages in Gomberg 1972, p. 62. 'Industry N.E.C.': calculated from the residual value of wages in industry (total industrial wages less wages paid in all other branches) and employment in 'Industry N.E.C.'

<u>RSFSR</u>: derived as a residual after wages in all other republics had been estimated for each branch, total wages paid in the RSFSR were calculated by subtracting the sum of wages paid in that branch in all other republics from the USSR total. This residual value of wages paid in the USSR was then divided by employment in that branch in the RSFSR.

Ukraine: Relative wage coefficients (branch wage as a percentage of

'Industry' average wage) were derived by weighting Loginov coefficients for the three economic regions within the republic by shares of each region in gross output for the branch in 1965 (Granik and Gromov, 1970, pp. 101-102);

except: 'Power' and 'Glass and Porcelain'. USSR average wages used. 'Industry N.E.C.': derived from residual value of industrial wage payments.

Moldavia: For each branch, the ratio of branch wage to 'Industry' average wage in Belorussia was applied to 'Industry' average wage in Moldavia.

-16 ----

Belorussia: estimated from relative wages (ration of branch wage to

'Industry' average) in 1965, (<u>NK ESSR v 1971</u>, p. 42), except: 'Ferrous Metalurgy,' 'Chemical Products,' and 'Glass and Porcelain': USSR average wage used.

'Industrial N.E.C.': derived from residual value of industrial wage payments.

Latvia: estimated from relative wages in 1965 (<u>NK La SSR, 1973</u>, p. 308), except: 'Industry N.E.C.': derived from residual value of industrial wage payments.

Lithuania: 1966 wages from <u>Ekon i kult Li SSR, 1973</u>, pp. 69, 103, 118, 134, 170, 194, 220, 234, 274, 320, except: 'Ferrous Metalurgy': equal to wages in 'Ferrous Metallurgy' in

Latvia in 1966.

'Industry N.E.C.' derived from residual value of industrial wage payments.

Estonia: weighted average wages by branch for Latvia plus Lithuania used to calculate relative wage coefficients (ratio of branch wage to 'Industry' average), which were applied to Estonia 'Industry' average wage.

<u>Georgia</u>: relative wages in Armenia applied to 'Industry' average wage in Georgia.

<u>Armenia</u>: 1966 wages from <u>Trud v Armianskoi SSR</u>, <u>1970</u>, pp. 74-75, except 'Nonferrous Metallurgy,' 'Ferrous Metallurgy,' 'Power,' 'Chemical Products,' 'Glass and Porcelain' and 'Industry N.E.C.' Wages in these branches were estimated using coefficients of relative wages of the corresponding branches for the USSR as a whole.

<u>Azerbaidzhan</u>: relative wages in Armenia applied to 'Industry' average wage in Azerbaidzhan.

. Kazakhstan: USSR average wages used for 'Nonferrous Metallurgy,' 'Ferrous

Uzbekistan: estimated from relative wages for the republic in 1965 (NK Uz SSR v 1974, p. 65);

except: 'Industry N.E.C.': derived from residual value of industrial wage payments.

<u>Kirgizstan</u>: estimated from relative wages for the republic in 1970 (NK Ki SSR v 1975, p. 66):

except: 'Nonferrous Metallurgy,' 'Chemical Products,' 'Glass and Porcelain,' and 'Industry N.E.C.' wages for corresponding branch in Uzbekistan used.

'Industry N.E.C.': derived from residual value of industrial wage payments.

<u>Tadzhikistan</u> and <u>Turkmenistan</u>: weighted average wages by branch for Uzbekistan plus Kirgizstan used to calculate relative wage coefficients (ratio of branch wage to 'Industry' average) which were applied to 'Industry' average wage in each republic.

1. M. B.

Bibliography

### STATISTICAL HANDBOOKS

- 57 -

USSR

<u>Narodnoe</u> khozia<u>istvo SSSR v 1965 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii</u> <u>ezhegodnik</u>. Moscow: Statistika, 1966 909 pp.

Narodnoe Khoziaistvo SSSR v 1967 godu. Statisticheskii czhegodnik. Moscow: Statistika, 1968, 1008 pp.

<u>Trud v SSSR.</u> <u>Statisticheskii sbornik</u>. Moscow: Statistika, 1968, 343 pp.

<u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo SSSR v 1968 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii</u> <u>ezhegodnik.</u> Moscow: Statistika, 1969, 831 pp.

### RSFSR

<u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo RSFSR v 1962 godu. Statisticheskii</u> <u>ezhegodnik</u>. Moscow: Gosstatizdat, 1963, 608 pp.

Narodnoe khoziaistvo RSFSR v 1967 godu. Statisticheskii ezhegodnik. Moscow: Statistika, 1968, 648 pp.

Narodnoe khoziaistvo RSFSR v 1968 godu. <u>Statisticheskii</u> ezhegodnik. Moscow: Statistika, 1969, 463 pp.

<u>Narodnoe khozimistvo RSFSR v 1969 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii</u> <u>ezhegodnik</u>. Moscow: Statistika, 1970, 468 pp.

<u>Narodnoe khozisistvo RSFSR v 1972 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii</u> <u>ezhegodnik</u>. Moscow: Statistika, 1973, 512 pp.

<u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo RSFSR v 1975 godu. Statisticheskii</u> <u>ezhegodnik</u>. Moscow: Statistika, 1976, 519 pp.

### Ukraine

.....

<u>Narodne hospodarstvo Ukrains'koi RSR v 1960 rotsi.</u> <u>Statistichnii ezhegodnik</u>. Kiev: Gosstatizdat, 1961, 556 pp.

Narodne hospodarstvo Ukrains'koi <u>RSR v 1968 rotsi</u>. <u>Statistichnii</u> ezhegodnik. Kiev: Statistika, 1969, 609 pp.

<u>Narodne hospodarstvo Ukrains'koi RSR v 1970 rotsi.</u> <u>Statistichnii shchorichnik</u>. Kiev: Statistika, 1971, 565 pp. - 58 -

Moldavia

A STATE OF A

- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Moldavskoi SSR</u> (1968) <u>Statististicheskii sbornik</u>. Kishinev: Statistika, 1969, 421 pp.
- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Moldavskoi SSR v 1970 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii sbornik.</u> Kishinev: Statistika, 1971, 408 pp.

### Belorussia

- Belorusskaia SSR za gody Sovetskoi vlasti. Statisticheskii sbornik. Minsk: Belarus', 1967, 403 pp.
- Belorusskaia SSR za 50 let. Statisticheskii sbornik. Minsk: Belarus', 1968, 260 pp.
- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Belorusskoi SSR v 1968 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii sbornik.</u> Minsk: Statistika, Belorusskoe otdelenie, 1969, 535 pp.
- Belorusskaia <u>SSR v tsifrakh v 1969 godu</u>. <u>Statisticheskii sbornik</u>. Minsk: Statistika, 1970, 336 pp.
- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Belorusskoi SSR v 1970 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii sbornik.</u> <u>Minsk: Statistika, Belorusskoe otdelenie, 1971, 416 pp.</u>
- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Belorusskoi SSR v 1971 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii sbornik.</u> Minsk: Belarus', 1972, 223 pp.

### Latvia

- Latviiskaia <u>SSR v tsifrakh v 1968 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii sbornik.</u> Riga: Statistika, Latviiskoe otdelenie, 1969, 466 pp.
- Latviiskaia SSR v tsifrakh v 1969 godu. Statisticheskii sbornik. Riga: Statistika, Latviiskoe otdelenie, 1971, 622 pp.
- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Latviiskoi SSR v 1971 godu. Statisticheskii sbornik.</u> Riga: Statistika, Latviiskoe otdelenie, 1972, 417 pp.
- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Latviiskoi SSR v 1973 gudu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii</u> <u>ezhegodnik.</u> Riga: Liesma, 1974, 590 pp.

### Lithuania

- Ekonomika i kul'tura Litovskoi SSR v 1969 godu. Statisticheskii ezhegodnik. Vil'nius: Statistika, Litovskoe otdelenie, 1970, 503 pp.
- <u>Ekonomika i kul'tura Litovskoi SSR v 1970 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii ezhegodnik.</u> Vil'nius: Statistika, Litovskoe otdelenie, 1971, 514 pp.

<u>Ekonomika i kul'tura Litovskoi SSR v 1972 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii ezhegodnik.</u> Vil'nius: Mintis, 1973, 476 pp. - 59 -

Lithuania (continued)

Promyshlennost' Litovskoi SSR. Statisticheskii sbornik. Vil'nius: Mintis, 1973, 418 pp.

Estonia

There are a strong

<u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Estonskoi SSR v 1968 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii ezhegodnik.</u> Tallin: Statistika, Estonskoe otdelenie, 1969, 290 pp.

Narodnoe khoziaistvo Estonskoi SSR v 1969 godu. Statisticheskii ezhegodnik. Tallin: Statistika, Estonskoe otdelenie, 1970, 384 pp.

### Georgia

- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Gruzinskoi SSR v 1967 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii</u> ezhegodnik. Tbilisi: Statistika, 1968, 383 pp.
- Sovetskala Gruzila po Leninskomu puti. Statisticheskil sbornik. Tbilisi: Statistika, Gruzinskoe otdelenie, 1970, 178 pp.

50 let Sovetskoi Gruzii. Statisticheskii sbornik. Tbilisi: Statistika, Gruzinskoe otdelenie, 1971, 388 pp.

### Armenia

<u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo</u> <u>Armianskoi SSR v 1967 godu</u>. <u>Statisticheskii ezhegodnik</u>. Erevan, 1968, 263 pp.

<u>Narodnoe khozizistvo</u> <u>Armianskoi SSR v 1968 godu</u>. <u>Statisticheskii sbornik</u>. Erevan, 1969, 255 pp.

<u>Trud v Armianskoi SSR. Statisticheskii sbornik.</u> Erevan: Statistika, Armianskoi otdelenie, 1970, 205 pp.

Armeniia v edinoi sem'e narodov SSSR. Erevan, 1972, 218 pp.

Azerbaidzhan

<u>Azerbaidzhanskaia SSR v tsifrakh v 1968 godu.</u> <u>Kratkii statisticheskii</u> <u>sbornik</u>. Baku, 1969, 98 pp.

<u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo</u> <u>Azerbaidzhanskoi</u> <u>SSR v 1970 godu</u>. <u>Statisticheskii</u> <u>ezhegodnik</u>. <u>Baku</u>, 1972, 458 pp.

### Kazakhstan

<u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Kazakhstana v 1968 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii sbornik</u> Alma-Ata: "Kazakhstan," 1970, 368 pp.

Narodnoe khoziaistvo Kazakhstana v 1971 godu. Statisticheskii sbornik. Alma-Ata: Solusuchetizdat, Kazakhskoe otdelemie, 1972, 432 pp. Kazakhstan (continued)

<u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Kazakhstana v 1972 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii sbornik.</u> Alma-Ata: Statistika, 1973, 431 pp.

### Uzbekistan

- Narodnoe khoziaistvo Uzbekskoi SSR v 1967 godu. Statisticheskii ezhegodnik. Tashkent: "Uzbekistan, 1968, 375 pp.
- Narodnoe khoziaistvo Uzbekskoi SSR v 1968 godu. <u>Statisticheskii ezhegodnik</u>. Tashkent: 'Uzbekistan,' 1970, 383 pp.
- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Uzbekskoi SSR v 1969 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii sbornik.</u> Tashkent: 'Uzbekistan,' 1970, 351 pp.
- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Uzbekskoi SSR v 1971 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii ezhegodnik.</u> Tashkent: 'Uzbekistan,'' 1972, 364 pp.
- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Uzbekskoi SSR v 1972 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii ezhegodnik.</u> Tashkent: "Uzbekistan," 1973, 365 pp.
- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Uzbekskoi SSR za 50 let.</u> <u>Iubileinyi statisticheskii</u> <u>ezhegodnik.</u> Tashkent: "Uzbekistan," 1974, 331 pp.
- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Uzbekskoi SSR v 1974 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii ezhegodnik.</u> Tashkent: "Uzbekistan," 1975, 383 pp.

### Kirgizstan

- <u>Kirgizstan za gody Sovetskoi vlasti.</u> <u>Statisticheskii sbornik</u>. Frunze: Kyrgyzstan, 1970, 247 pp.
- <u>Kirgizstan v tsifrakh.</u> <u>Statisticheskii sbornik</u>. Frunze: Kyrgyzstan, 1971, 280 pp.
- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Kirgizskoi SSR v 1972 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii ezhegodnik.</u> Frunze: Kyrgyzstan, 1973, 258 pp.
- <u>Narodnoe khozialstvo Kirgizskoi SSR v 1975 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii sbornik.</u> Frunze: Kyrgyzstan, 1976, 411 pp.

### Tadzhikistan

- Narodnoe khoziaistvo Tadzhikskoi <u>SSR v 1965</u> godu. <u>Statisticheskii ezhegodnik</u>. Dushanbe: Statistika, 1966, 311 pp.
- <u>Narodnoe khoziaistvo Tadzhikskoi SSR v 1968 godu.</u> <u>Statisticheskii ezhegodnik.</u> Dushanbe: Statistika, 1969, 287 pp.

Narodnoe khoziaistvo Tadzhikskoi SSR v 1969 godu. Statisticheskii ezhegodnik. Dushanbe: Statistika, 1970, 308 pp. Tadzhikistan (continued)

Narodnoe khoziaistvo Tadzhikskoi <u>SSR v 1972 godu</u>. <u>Statisticheskii</u> ezhegodnik. Dushanbe: Irfon, 1973, 303 pp.

Narodnoe khoziaistvo Tadzhikskoi SSR v 1974 godu. Statisticheskii ezhegodnik. Dushanbe: Irfon, 1975, 279 pp.

Turkmenistan

.....

Turkmenistan za 50 let. Statisticheskii sbornik. Ashkhabad: 'Turkmenistan,' 1974, 223 pp.

### Other Sources

Adamesku, A. A. (ed.) Zakavkazskii ekonomicheskii raion. Moscow: Nauka, 1973, 246 pp.

Allakhverdov, M. I. <u>Ekonomika Azerbaidzhanskoi SSR.</u> Moscow: Ekonomika, 1967, 79 pp.

Baimuratov, U. B. (ed.) <u>Effektivnost' tekhnicheskogo progressa v promyshlen-</u> nosti <u>Kazakhstana</u>. Alma-Ata: Nauka Kazakhskoi SSR, 1973, 168 pp.

Charkviani, K. N. et al. <u>Ekonomika</u> <u>Sovetskoi</u> <u>Gruzii</u>: <u>dostizheniia</u>, <u>problemy</u>, <u>perspektivy</u>, Tbilisi: Ts K Kommunisticheskoi partii Gruzii, 1972, 606 pp.

Checheleva, T. B. (ed.) <u>Effektivnost' promyshlennogo proizvodstva (na</u> <u>primere Kazakhskoi SSR</u>). Alma-Ata: Nauka Kazakhskoi SSR, 1974, 176 pp.

D'iachkov, G. V. Obshchestvennoe i lichnoe v kolkhozakh. Moscow: Kolos, 1968, 208 pp.

Feshbach, M. "Regional and branch wage differentials in the Soviet Union," ACES Bulletin. Vol. XVII, No. 2-3, 1975, pp. 57-59.

Gomberg, Ya. I. <u>Kvalifitsirovannyi trud i metody ego izmereniia</u>. Moscow: Ekonomika, 1972, 232 pp.

Granberg, A. G. (ed.) <u>Mezhotraslevye balansy v analize territorial'nykh</u> proportsii <u>SSSR</u>. Novosibirsk: Nauka, Sibirskoe otdelenie, 1975, 304 pp.

(ed.) <u>Optimizatsija</u> <u>territorial'nykh proportsij</u> <u>narodnogo khoziaistvo</u>. <u>Moscow:</u> Ekonomika, 1973, 248 pp. Granik, G. I. and V. I. Gromov. <u>Otraslevoe i territorial'noe razdelenie</u> <u>truda</u>. <u>Moscow: Mysl'</u> 1970 134 pp.

Isaakian, G. D. <u>Osnovnye fondy promyshlennosti Armianskoi SSR</u> (vosproizvodstvo i ispol'zovanie), Erevan: Aiastan, 1970, 414 pp.

Kharitonov, N. S. Kapital'nye vlozheniia v sel'skom khoziaistvoe planirovanie i effektivnost'. Moscow: Ekonomika, 1972, 247 pp.

Kostinkov, I. I. (ed.) <u>Profsoiuznaia rabota na metallurgicheskikh pred</u> priiatiiakh. Moscow: Profizdat, 1967, 160 pp.

Loginov, V. P. <u>Ekonomicheskaia effektivnost' mekhanizatsii</u>. Moscow: Nauka, 1975, 296 pp.

Margolin, A. B. (ed.) <u>Pribaltiiskii</u> ekonomicheskii raion. Moscow: Nauka, 1970, 309 pp.

Mazanova, M. B. (ed.) <u>Problemy razvitila vostochnykh raionov</u> <u>SSSR</u>. Moscow: Nauka, 1971, 178 pp.

- Metodicheskie ukazaniia k razrabotke gosudarstvennykh planov razvitila narodnogo khoziaistva SSSR. Moscow: Ekonomika, 1974, 792 pp.
- Nekrasov, N. N. (ed.) <u>Razvitie i razmeshchenie proizvoditel'nykh sil</u> <u>ekonomicheskikh raionov SSSR. Moscow: Nauka, 1967, 283 pp.</u>

Pavlenko V. F. Territorial'noe i otraslevoe planirovanie. Moscow: Ekonomika, 1971, 103 pp.

Pervushin, S. A. et al. <u>Ekonomika tsvetnoi metallurgii SSSR</u>. Moscow: 'lietallurgiia,' 1970, 148 pp.

Pinkhenson, D. M. <u>Ekonomicheskala geografila v tsifrakh</u>. Noscow: Prosveshchenie, 1970, 190 pp.

- Popovkin, V. A. 'O povyshenii effektivnosti otraslevoi struktury promyshlennosti Ukrainskoi SSR' <u>Organizatsiia i planirovanie otraslei</u> <u>narodnogo khoziaistva</u>, v. 38, 1975, pp. 130-140.
- Rapawy, S. Estimates and Projections of the Labor Force and Civilian Employment in the U.S.S.R. 1950 to 1990. Foreign Economic Report No. 10, U.S. Department of Commerce, BEA, 1976, 76 pp.
- <u>Tadzhikistan:</u> ekonomicheskii rost i effektivnost<sup>1</sup>. Dushanke: Irfon, 1972, 144 pp.

Tsaranov, V. I. <u>Po puti industrializatsii.</u> Kishinev: Shtinitsa, 1975.

Vestnik statistiki, 1971, No. 4, pp. 87-88.

ANT THE PARTY OF

Zakharov, M. L. and V. M. Piskov. <u>Sotsial'noe obespechenie i strakhovanie</u> <u>y SSSR</u>, Moscow: Iuridicheskaia literatura, 1972, 712 pp.